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Chairman’s Statement EEREE

To align the financial year end date of VST Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) with its subsidiaries,
thereby facilitate preparation of the consolidated
financial statement, the Company has changed

its financial year end date from 31 March to 31
December. On behalf of the Board of Directors, |
am pleased to present to shareholders the results
and report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the nine

months ended 31 December 2009.
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In 2009, the stimulus economic packages launched by
governments around the world had effectively alleviated
the impact of the global financial turmoil. With a solid
financial position, the Group was able to seize opportunities
arising amid the economic recovery. During the past nine
months, we have delivered another set of outstanding and
consistent results. The Group has continued to strengthen
our relationships with our vendors, customers and bankers
and the Group’s business foundation. We have continued
to widen our product range, enlarge our distribution network
and enhance our operational efficiency.

We have sharpened our focus on improving internal
efficiencies and continued to generating positive operating
cash flow through better management of working capital
and more effective management of financial resources. The
Group’s turnover for the nine months ended 31 December
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Chairman’s Statement =EREE

2009 was approximately HK$19,706,000,000 (for the
twelve months ended 31 March 2009: approximately
HK$22,091,000,000). Gross profit for the nine months
ended 31 December 2009 amounted to approximately
HK$963,000,000 (for the twelve months ended 31 March
2009: approximately HK$1,049,000,000). Net profit for
the nine months ended 31 December 2009 amounted to
approximately HK$319,800,000 (for the twelve months
ended 31 March 2009: approximately HK$261,800,000).
Basic earnings per share for the nine months ended 31
December 2009 amounted to approximately HK23.86 cents
(for the twelve months ended 31 March 2009: approximately
HK20.85 cents) per share.

The Group has achieved another set of excellent results
during the period. Leveraging on our diversified products
and strong distribution network, the Group further improved
its product structure and expanded its distribution channels
in Asia Pacific. The Group has strong distribution networks
with over 21,000 business partners in six countries,
including China, Thailand, Malaysia, Singapore, Indonesia
and the Philippines, and our businesses have also extended
from distribution of IT products for the commercial and
consumer markets to provision of enterprise system tools
for IT infrastructure, training, maintenance and support
services. Our diversified product lines include vendors such
as HP, Apple, Seagate, AMD, Intel, Western Digital, Lenovo,
IBM, Acer, Sun Microsystems, Microsoft, Oracle, Cisco,
Buffalo, BenQ, Hitachi and many more.
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PROSPECTS

| am very pleased that the Group has continued to deliver
excellent results during the period. We expect the market
to continue its rebound and grow in 2010. The policy of the
Chinese government to subsidize purchases of household
appliances by rural residents will continue to have a positive
impact on our business. In the long run, as the education
level and affluence of the rural population continues to
improve, the popularity of IT products is going to rise in rural
China. Market penetration of computers in Mainland China
is low with tremendous potential for growth. The Group
plans to continue to strengthen its foothold in Mainland
China market. Capitalising on our expanding product mix,
our comprehensive sales network and dynamic marketing
strategy, the Group will continue to grow consistently year
on year. Furthermore, it will also accelerate development
of markets in Southeast Asia thereby create a new growth
driver. With our experienced management team, the Group
will continue to look for opportunities to work with world
famous IT suppliers and continue to expand our product mix
and sales channels so as to continue to achieve excellent
results.

Lastly, | would like to thank our shareholders for their
loyal support of the Group. | would also like to take this
opportunity to express my deepest gratitude to all of our
staff for their whole-hearted devotion and passion towards
their duties and to thank our Board members and business
partners for their trust and support. We are confident in
overcoming the challenges ahead and will strive our best to
maximize returns for our shareholders.

Li Jialin

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 31 March 2010
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Management Discussion and Analysis 2 &z &k 24

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s turnover for the nine months ended 31
December 2009 was approximately HK$19,706,000,000
(for the twelve months ended 31 March 2009: approximately
HK$22,091,000,000).

The Group has shown strong growth in the distribution
segment, demands for notebooks, desktops, CPUs and
hard disks have been strong and continued to rise. In
the enterprise systems segment, the slight slow down in
the June quarter has been set off by the increase in the
September and December quarters due to increase in
corporate spending.

Gross profit for the nine months ended 31 December
2009 amounted to approximately HK$963,000,000 (for
the twelve months ended 31 March 2009: approximately
HK$1,049,000,000). Operating profit for the nine months
ended 31 December 2009 amounted to approximately
HK$447,960,000 (for the twelve months ended 31 March
2009: approximately HK$406,400,000). Net profit for
the nine months ended 31 December 2009 amounted to
approximately HK$319,800,000 (for the twelve months
ended 31 March 2009: approximately HK$261,800,000).
Basic earnings per share for the nine months ended 31
December 2009 amounted to approximately HK23.86 cents
(for the twelve months ended 31 March 2009: approximately
HK20.85 cents) per share.

The Group has continuously aimed to widen our product
range in order to provide more choices to our customers.
Our extensive and diversified products lines now include
vendors such as HP, Apple, Seagate, AMD, Intel, Western
Digital, Lenovo, IBM, Acer, Sun Microsystems, Microsoft,
Oracle, Cisco, Buffalo, BenQ, Hitachi and many more.
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PROSPECTS

With the global economy continues to recover from the
financial crisis and the PRC aggressively bridging the gap
in its IT infrastructure, the Group will continue to focus on
the potential of the PRC IT market. South East Asia markets
remain strong with significant growth coming from our
Indonesia operation, which has grown over 43% year on
year. The Group’s experienced management has continued
to reach industry-leading standard. With the expertise
of our experienced management team and an extensive
and diversified product lines and distribution networks,
we are in an excellent position to continue to focus on the
potential growth of the Group. The Group will aim to achieve
consistent, healthy operating margin and deliver maximum
shareholders’ return.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents were approximately HK$451,000,000 (31 March
2009: approximately HK$304,000,000).

As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s borrowings
amounted to approximately HK$1,359,700,000 (31 March
2009: approximately HK$1,203,400,000). The gearing ratio,
calculated as borrowings less cash and cash equivalents
divided by total equity, was 0.48 (31 March 2009: 0.67).

As at 31 December 2009, the Group recorded total current
assets of approximately HK$5,882,500,000 (31 March
2009: approximately HK$4,331,400,000) and total current
liabilities of approximately HK$3,955,900,000 (31 March
2009: approximately HK$2,843,800,000). The current ratio
of the Group, calculated by dividing the total current assets
by the total current liabilities, was approximately 1.49 times
as at 31 December 2009 (31 March 2009: approximately
1.52 times).
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The Group recorded an increase in shareholders’ funds from
approximately HK$1,136,700,000 as at 31 March 2009 to
approximately HK$1,642,500,000 as at 31 December 2009.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group generally finances its operations with internally
generated resources and banking facilities provided by
banks in the PRC, Hong Kong, Singapore, Thailand,
Malaysia, Indonesia and the Philippines. The bank
borrowings of the Group were predominantly subject to
floating interest rates.

Cash and bank deposits of the Group were mainly
denominated in United States dollars, Renminbi, Singapore
dollars and Malaysian ringgit.

Transactions of the Group are mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, United States dollars, Renminbi, Singapore
dollars, Thailand baht or Malaysian ringgit.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had property, plant
and equipment held under finance leases and secured bank
borrowings as set out in note 19 to the financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2009, the Group did not have contingent
liabilities.

EMPLOYEES
As at 31 December 2009, the Group had 2,205 (31 March
2009: 2,192) full time employees.

The Group remunerated its employees mainly based on the
industry practice, individual’s performance and experience.
Apart from the basic remuneration, discretionary bonus
and share option may be granted to eligible employees by
reference to the Group performance as well as individual
performance. Other benefits include medical, annual leave
and retirement schemes. The net total remuneration paid
for the nine months ended 31 December 2009 amounted
to approximately HK$292,999,000 (31 March 2009:
approximately HK$337,014,000). The Group also provides
training courses or seminars to its staff.
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Corporate Governance Report ¥ EEHSE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is
pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report for
the nine months ended 31 December 2009.

The Company endeavours to attain high standards of
corporate governance practices to enhance and maintain
shareholder value and investor confidence.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
Throughout the nine months ended 31 December 2009,
the Company has complied with the code provisions on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) except for code
provision A.2.1 which is explained in the relevant paragraphs
below.

The Company will continue to review and improve its
corporate governance practices from time to time to ensure
that its corporate governance practices comply with the
regulatory requirements and appropriate for the needs of its
business.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of
the Company are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is
vested in the Board, which assumes the responsibility for
leadership and control of the Company and is collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors should take
decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.
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The Board reserves for its decisions on all major matters
of the Company, including: the approval and monitoring of
all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal
control and risk management systems, material transactions
(in particular those may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the
company secretary of the Company, with a view to
ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

Each Director is able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company and the senior management. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval
has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the abovementioned officers.

The Board has full support of the Chief Executive Officer and
the senior management to discharge their responsibilities.

Composition

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and
experience necessary for its independent judgement and
fulfilling its business needs.

The Board currently comprises eight members, consisting

of five executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors.
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The Board of the Company comprises the following
Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer)
Mr. Tay Eng Hoe (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Ong Wei Hiam,
William

Mr. Chan Hoi Chau

Mr. Mao Xiangagian

(Appointed on 2 July 2009)
(Appointed on 15 July 2009)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Ni Zhenwei Member of Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee

Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter Chairman of Audit Committee
and member of
Remuneration Committee

Mr. Li Wei Member of Audit Committee
and Chairman of

Remuneration Committee

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in
all corporate communications issued by the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to time.

During the nine months ended 31 December 2009, the
Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors with at least one
independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive Directors of his
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive Directors to be independent in accordance with
the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
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The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range
of technical, business and financial expertise, experiences
and independent judgement to the Board. Through their
active participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in
managing issues involving potential conflict of interests
and serving on Board committees, all independent non-
executive Directors make various contributions to the
effective direction of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division
of responsibilities between the Chairman and CEO should be
clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr Li Jialin, one of the founders of the Group, currently holds
the offices of Chairman and CEQ. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both Chairman and CEO in the same
person will not impair the balance of power and authority
between the Directors and the management of Company
and considers that this structure will enable the Group to
make and implement decisions promptly and effectively.
The Directors will meet regularly to consider major matters
affecting the operations of the Company.

Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors
The Company has established formal, considered and
transparent procedures for the appointment and succession
planning of Directors.

Each Director of the Company has entered a service
contract with the Company and renewable for successive
years of one year each commencing from the day
immediately after the expiry of the current term of the service
contract unless and until terminated by either party by not
less than three months’ notice in writing. Under the service
agreements, the initial annual emoluments of each executive
Director is fixed and the remuneration payable to each of
them will be reviewed by the Board each year.
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The procedures and process of appointment, re-election
and removal of directors are laid down in the Company’s
Articles of Association. Pursuant to the Company’s Articles
of Association, all Directors will be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and any new
Directors appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition
to the Board shall submit himself/herself for re-election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.

The Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing the
Board composition, developing and formulating the relevant
procedures for nomination and appointment of Directors,
monitoring the appointment of Directors and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

The Board reviewed its own structure, size and composition
regularly to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills
and experience appropriate for the requirements of the
business of the Company. Where vacancies on the Board
exist, the Board will carry out the selection process by
making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of
the proposed candidates, the Company’s needs and other
relevant statutory requirements and regulations.

According to Article 86 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Mao Xianggian appointed by the Board on
15 July 2009 has retired from office and re-elected at the
2009 annual general meeting.

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Li Jialin, Mr. Ni Zhenwei and Dr. Chan
Po Fun Peter will retire from office and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. The Board recommended the
re-appointment of the Directors standing for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
The Company'’s circular contains detailed information of the
Directors standing for re-election.
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Training for Directors

Each of the newly appointed Directors receives
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/
she has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware
of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

The Directors are continually updated with legal and
regulatory developments, and the business and market
chances to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.
Continuing briefings and professional development to
directors will be arranged whenever necessary.

Board Meetings
Directors’ Attendance and Number of Meetings

The attendance of Directors at Board meetings held during
the nine months ended 31 December 2009 is set out below:
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Attendance/Number HE BT

Directors of Meetings X BERE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Li Jialin 4/4 FEMEE 4/4
Mr. Tay Eng Hoe 4/4 LK FN 5 A 4/4
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William 4/4 FENTE 4/4
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau BRI 5 A

(Appointed on 2 July 2009) 3/3 (RZZEZNFLAZHEZT) 3/3
Mr. Mao Xianggjian ERATSCE

(Appointed on 15 July 2009) 1/1 (RZZEZNF+ATHREZE) 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors BIUFHITES
Mr. Ni Zhenwei 4/4 RIRERE a/4
Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter 4/4 PRI S iE T 4/4
Mr. Li Wei 4/4 FESEE 4/4
Practices and Conduct of Meetings 2 EH R TH

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting
are normally made available to Directors in advance. Notices
of Board meetings are served to all Directors in accordance
with the CG Code before the meetings.
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Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate,
complete and reliable information are sent to all Directors
at least 3 days before each Board meeting or committee
meeting to keep the Directors appraised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company and to
enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and
each Director also have separate and independent access to
the senior management whenever necessary.

The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary of the Company normally attend
all regular Board meetings and when necessary, other
committee meetings to advise on business developments,
financial and accounting matters, statutory compliance,
corporate governance and other major aspects of the
Company.

Minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings are
kept by the Company Secretary. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to Directors for comment within a reasonable time
after each meeting and the final version is open for Directors’
inspection.

According to the current Board practice, any material
transaction, which involves a conflict of interests for a
substantial shareholder or a Director, will be considered
and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association also contain
provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting and
not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such Directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).
Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and
the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the Model Code throughout the nine months ended 31
December 2009.

The Company also has established a written guideline on
terms no less exacting terms than the Model Code for
governing the securities transactions by employees who
are likely to be possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company or its securities. No incident
of non-compliance by the employees was noted by the
Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established two committees, namely
the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All
Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of
the Board committees are available upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee
are independent non-executive Directors and the list of the
Chairman and members of each Board committee is set out
under the headline of “Composition” of “The Board” of the
Corporate Governance Report.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors (including one independent non-executive
Director who possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise). None of the members of the Audit Committee are
a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the
following:

(@  To review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
qualified accountant, compliance officer or external
auditors before submission to the Board.

(b)  To review the relationship with the external auditors
by reference to the work performed by the auditors,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors.

(c) To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and associated
procedures.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the nine
months ended 31 December 2009 to review the financial
results and reports, financial reporting and compliance
procedures, and the re-appointment of the external
auditors.

The attendance of individual members at Audit Committee
meetings is set out below:
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Attendance/Number HiE BT

of Meetings R

Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter (Chairman) 2/2 BRESEL (£E) 2/2
Mr. Ni Zhenwei 2/2 ﬁﬂ)ﬁ{:‘%?ﬁi 2/2
Mr. Li Wei 2/2 FleiA 2/2
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There is no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee regarding the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of external auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the nine months ended
31 December 2009 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee
include establishing a formal and transparent procedure
for fixing the remuneration of the executive Directors and
for fixing the remuneration packages of all the Directors
and senior management. The Remuneration Committee is
also responsible for ensuring the remuneration packages
are sufficient to attract and retain the Directors for running
the Company successfully; avoiding over-paying and that
no Directors or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration. The remuneration will be
determined by reference to the performance of the individual
and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets by the end
of each year for reviewing the policy, structure and related
matters of the remuneration packages of the executive
Directors and senior management. The human resources
department is responsible for collection and administration
of the human resources data and making recommendations
to the Remuneration Committee for consideration. The
Remuneration Committee will consult the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer about their recommendations
on remuneration policy, structure and related matters of
remuneration packages.
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One Remuneration Committee meeting has been held
during the nine months ended 31 December 2009 to review
(@) whether the remuneration package of the directors and
senior management are reasonable; (b) the basis of the
remuneration package, i.e. qualification, working experience
and market level of comparable position etc. to see whether
any improvements needed to be made.

The attendance of individual members at Remuneration
Committee meeting is set out below:

E-TTNFT_A=+—RHLENEAR  FWMEE
BIT—Red BEH@EELRSREREZFMTE
BRE: (o) FMFrB & E  WEE - TIEEREMS
EREL B HEKE - UEHER B BIEL AR

EXREHFEFMEZES SR I BRI

Attendance/Number HfE, BT

of Meetings BRI

Mr. Li Wei (Chairman) 1/ TN () 1/
Mr. Ni Zhenwei 1/1 fRIRIESTE 11
Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter 1/1 PRESEL 1/1

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment of annual and
interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and other
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other
regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the nine months
ended 31 December 2009.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the ‘Independent Auditor’s Report’.

The Company’s external auditors are KPMG. The
Group was charged approximately HK$4,715,000 and
HK$504,000 by KPMG for auditing and non-auditing
services respectively for the nine months ended 31
December 2009.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate
internal control system to safeguard shareholder
investments and the Company’s assets, and reviewing the
effectiveness of such on a semi-annual basis through the
Audit Committee.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance
structure with defined lines of responsibility and appropriate
delegation of responsibility and authority to the senior
management.

The management of the Company is responsible for
establishing the Group’s internal control framework,
covering all material controls including financial, operational
and compliance controls. The internal control framework
also provides for identification and management of risk.

The management also conducts periodic independent
reviews on the operations of individual divisions to identify
any irregularities and risks, develops action plans and
recommendations to address the identified risks, and
reports to the Audit Committee on any key findings. The
Audit Committee, in turn, reports to the Board on any
material issues and makes recommendations to the Board.

The Directors have conducted an annual review of the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staffing of the financial reporting function as well as the
oversight role of the audit committee and consider that the
existing internal control system of the Group is effective and
adequate.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company continues to enhance communications
and relationships with its investors. Designated senior
management maintain regular dialogue with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the
Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors are
dealt with in an informative and timely manner. To promote
effective communication, the Company also maintains a
website at www.vst.com.hk, where extensive information
and updates on the Company’s business developments
and operations, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are posted.

To safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights,
separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue, including the election of
individual Directors.

According to the amendments of the Listing Rules with
effect from 1 January 2009, all resolutions proposed at
shareholders’ meeting of listed issuers will be voted by poll.
The poll results shall be posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LI Jialin, aged 48, is one of the founders of the Group
and is the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer and Executive Director. He is the Director of VST
Group Limited (BVI) and VST Computers (H.K.) Limited
respectively. Mr. Li is also the Chairman and non-executive
Director of ECS Holdings Limited, a Singapore listed
company. He is responsible for the overall management and
strategic positioning of the Group. Mr. Li graduated from
Tsinghua University of the People’s Republic of China with
a Degree of Bachelor of Engineering in 1983 and a Master
Degree in Management Engineering in 1986.

Mr. TAY Eng Hoe, aged 58, is the Company’s Vice
Chairman and Executive Director. He joined our Company
in January 2008. He is also the group Vice Chairman of
our subsidiary company, ECS Holdings Limited (“ECS”), a
public listed company on the main board of the Singapore
Stock Exchange. He is the founder of the ECS Group and
brings with him more than 25 years of experience in the IT
business. Mr. Tay was conferred the Public Services Medal
by the President of the Republic of Singapore in recognition
of his public services to the country of Singapore. He holds
a Bachelor degree in Science (Honours) from the La Trobe
University and a Master degree in Business Administration
from the University of Melbourne.

Mr. ONG Wei Hiam, William, aged 38, is the Group’s Chief
Financial Officer and Executive Director. He holds a Bachelor
Degree in Economics from University College London and
a Master Degree in Analysis, Design & Management of
Information Systems from the London School of Economics
and Political Science. He is a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and Fellow
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Ong served in a senior
position at PricewaterhouseCoopers and has extensive
working experience in London and Hong Kong.
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Mr. CHAN Hoi Chau, aged 40, is the Company’s
Executive Director. He holds a Bachelor Degree in Electrical
Engineering from the University of Wisconsin-Madison in
the United States of America. Mr. Chan has over 15 years
of experience in personal computer and semiconductor
industry. Mr. Chan is currently the Vice President of sales of
VST Computers (H.K.) Limited, an indirectly wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. Prior to joining the Company
in May 2005, Mr. Chan served as the Distribution Director
of Advanced Micro Devices and was in charge of the
distribution business in China and Hong Kong.

Mr. MAO Xianggian, aged 44, appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in July 2009. He is also the Chief
Executive Officer of ECS Technology (China) Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company and the group acting Chief
Executive Officer of our subsidiary company, ECS Holdings
Limited, a public listed company on the main board of the
Singapore Stock Exchange. He holds a Bachelor and a
Master Degree both in Mechanical Engineering from the Tian
Jin University. Mr. Mao also holds an Executive MBA (EMBA)
from the China Europe International Business School. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr. Mao served as the Senior Vice
President of Digital China Holdings Limited (#&/H£x8&53% A%
BBR7A 7)) (“DC Holdings”) and as a Director (Vice President)
of Digital China Technology Limited (t# /| S5 R 2 E AR
A \]) (“DC Technology”) simultaneously and was in charge
of the distribution business in both DC Holdings and DC
Technology.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. NI Zhenwei, aged 73, has taught in Tsinghua University
for more than 38 years. Mr. Ni graduated from Tsinghua
University in 1959, majoring in mechanical engineering.
Since then, he taught in Tsinghua University. In 1987, Mr.
Ni obtained his qualification as an associate researcher
in Tsinghua University. He retired in 1996. Mr. Ni was
appointed by the Group in June 2004 as an independent
non-executive Director. He also serves as a member of Audit
committee and Remuneration committee of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary EZR A AR ERE

Dr. CHAN Po Fun Peter BBS, MBE, JP, FHKICPA,
FCPA (Aust.), aged 88, a fellow member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountant in England and Wales with practised
accountancy in Hong Kong for 60 years. He has a doctorate
in Offshore Petroleum Technology and Modern Chinese
Law and is an honorary fellow of the Society for Underwater
Technology. Dr. Chan is a trustee of Hong Kong Shue Yan
University (also as its Research Professor) and the United
College of Chinese University of Hong Kong. He was the
Chairman of the Kowloon Stock Exchange, a founding
Director of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited and
has served three terms as the Chairman of the former Hong
Kong Federation of Stock Exchanges. Dr. Chan has been
appointed by the Group since April 2005 as an independent
non-executive Director. He also serves as the Chairman of
Audit committee and a member of Remuneration committee
of the Company.

Mr. LI Wei, aged 54, was educated in the PRC, Germany
and Australia. He has over 20 years of experience in
establishing and operating businesses in Asia, particularly in
Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Li has previously served as the
Managing Director of a number of listed companies in Hong
Kong. Mr. Li has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company in August 2007. He also
serves as the Chairman of Remuneration committee and a
member of Audit committee of the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHOW Yiu Tat, aged 43, is the financial controller and
the company secretary of the Company and is responsible
for the overall financial and accounting and secretarial
matters of the Group. He holds a Bachelor Degree in
Business Accounting from University of Lincolnshire &
Humberside in United Kingdom. He is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and also
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He joined the Group in July 1999.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of VST Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) are pleased to present their annual report
together with the audited financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the nine months ended 31 December 2009.

CHANGE OF FINANCIAL YEAR END DATE

As a result of the recent change of financial year end date
from 31 March to 31 December, the financial statements
presented therefore cover the period of nine months from
1 April 2009 to 31 December 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the distribution of
information technology (“IT”) products and provision of
enterprise systems and IT services.

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note
8 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The largest customer for the nine months ended 31
December 2009 represented approximately 7.2% (for the
twelve months ended 31 March 2009: approximately 5.2%)
of the Group’s total turnover, and the combined total of the
five largest customers accounted for approximately 11.0%
(for the twelve months ended 31 March 2009: approximately
9.2%) of the Group’s total turnover for the nine months
ended 31 December 2009.

In addition, the largest supplier for the nine months ended 31
December 2009 represented approximately 39.2% (for the
twelve months ended 31 March 2009: approximately 41.8%)
of the Group’s total purchases, and the combined total of
the five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 67.5%
(for the twelve months ended 31 March 2009: approximately
67.5%) of the Group’s total purchases for the nine months
ended 31 December 2009.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the
major suppliers or customers noted above.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the nine months ended 31
December 2009 are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 46.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the nine months ended 31 December 2009 (for
the twelve months ended 31 March 2009: HK3.8 cents).

RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the nine months ended 31 December
2009 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 48 and note 16 to the financial statements
respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 5 to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS
Particulars of the Group’s borrowings are set out in note 19
to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2009, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately HK$218,000,000
(31 March 2009: approximately HK$175,000,000). In
addition, the Company’s share premium account, in the
amount of approximately HK$774,000,000 (31 March 2009:
approximately HK$623,000,000), may be distributed in
the form of fully paid bonus shares in accordance with the
Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association and there is no restriction
against such rights under the Companies Law (revised) of
the Cayman lIslands.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
136.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries have
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the nine months ended 31 December
2009.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) on 17 April 2002 for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants for their
contribution to the Group. Further details of the Scheme are
set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

During the period under review, no share options have been
granted/exercised/lapsed/cancelled. Details of the share
options granted under the Scheme are as follows:
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As at 1 April As at 31

Name or category 2009 December 2009 Exercise price

of participant Date of offer —EENE —ZENE per share (HK$)  Exercise period

AFHSEEER BTRH mA-H t+=A=t-H BRITEE(ER) TEAH

Director

£

Tay Eng Hoe 20-2-2009 5,000,000 5,000,000 0.54 20 February 2009 -

KA 19 February 2019
“TTNF_A-tHE

“Z-AFZAThA
Save as disclosed above, at no time during the period Br ESCPTIREEE SN - RERREMIERR - KA RSB A SE

was the Company or any of the companies comprising
the group, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debenture of, the Company
or any other body corporate and none of the Directors,
their spouses or their children under the age of 18, had any
right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such right during the period.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company who held office during the
nine months ended 31 December 2009 and up to the date
of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Tay Eng Hoe (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William

Mr. Chan Hoi Chau (Appointed on 2 July 2009)
Mr. Mao Xianggian (Appointed on 15 July 2009)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Ni Zhenwei

Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter

Mr. Li Wei

According to Article 86 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Mao Xianggian appointed by the Board on
15 July 2009 has retired from office and re-elected at the
2009 annual general meeting.

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Li Jialin, Mr. Ni Zhenwei and Dr. Chan Po
Fun Peter will retire by rotation and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The Company confirms that it has received from
each of its independent non-executive Directors an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to the Listing
Rules and the Company considers the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jialin has entered into service agreements with the
Company for a term of two years commencing from 9 May
2002 and expiring on 8 May 2004, renewable automatically
for successive years of one year each commencing from
the day immediately after the expiry of the then current term
of the service agreement, unless terminated by not less
than 3 months’ notice in writing served by either party on
the other. Other executive Directors have also entered into
service agreements with the Company for a term of one
year and renewable for successive years of one year each
commencing from the day immediately after the expiry of
their current term of service agreement, unless terminated
by not less than 3 months’ notice in writing served by either
party on the other.

Under the service agreements, the annual emoluments
of each executive Director is fixed and the remuneration
payable to each of them will be reviewed by the Board each
year.

Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed by
the Board but subject to re-election or retirement by rotation
at each annual general meeting as appropriate.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has an unexpired
service contract which is not terminable by the Company or
any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of the companies
comprising the Group was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the nine months ended 31 December 2009 or
at any time during the period under review.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior
management are set out on pages 24 to 26.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2009, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) which would have to be
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and/or short
positions of which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) and/or required to be entered in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

ESNSREEERE

EFERERERBUEFBHNFE24EE26H

ESRITRAZRRND - HEAROREXRS 2EER
HR

RIZZETZNF+_A=1+—H ARREFNITHREHN
ARRREEEBER (E&RFBHFMEGRD (FEZX
{5155 671 %) ([ R ) FEXVED) 2Mtn - HREk
NREBESFTRBRIEEF LG IRGIFEXVEBFT R87D
MAHNGARBNEBBMERZMBRRR ([BR]) 2
m R (BRREE S MR R Z R EFE RE
Bziemk,/ S8R R RBLRARARREES KT
Pz 352 1R EF 2 B LM R E EHRRABMEAAF]
KB Z 2 s s e AT -

Approximate
percentage of
issued share capital
of the Company/
associated company

Name of Number and class EARDTE L
Director Capacity of securities BRITRAZ
EEHE 514 EHHERER BABES
Mr. Li Jialin Beneficial owner 55,146,000 ordinary shares, 4.38%
Long position
FEMEE ERBEAA 55,146,000 & & @k
£EE
Interest of a controlled 241,500,000 ordinary shares 19.18%
corporation Long position (Note 1)
RS EE R 241,500,000 % % i@ %
®E (Wit 1)
Family interest 166,000,000 ordinary shares 13.19%
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Approximate
percentage of
issued share capital

of the Company/
associated company
Name of Number and class HARDT L
Director Capacity of securities BRITRAZ
EBHE 5t B%HE RER BB
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William Beneficial owner 188,000 ordinary shares 0.01%
Long position
TRITEE BEHEBA 188,000 A% &%
KB
Mr. Tay Eng Hoe Beneficial owner 5,000,000 ordinary share options 0.40%
Long position
KM BEEERA 5,000,000 & 38 I B A
®B
Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter Beneficial owner 640,000 ordinary shares 0.05%
Long position
PRESEL EREAA 640,000 A% & B AR
&E
Notes: et -

1. 241,500,000 shares of the Company are held by L & L Limited,
the entire issued share capital of which is equally held by Mr. Li
Jialin and his spouse, Madam Liu Li.

2. 166,000,000 shares of the Company are held by Madam Liu Li,
the spouse of Mr. Li Jialin.

1. R A] 2 241,500,000 B A D B L & L Limited#48 » M2 AR.2
PR BETRARTEMREE R ERBRF LS5 EE -

2. TEMST A Z BB IR 22 455 A A ),2 166,000,000 4% 15 °
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, none of
the Directors nor the chief executives of the Company had
any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and/or short positions of which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2009, so far is known to the Directors,
the following persons (not being a Director or a chief
executive of the Company) had an interest and/or a short
position in the shares and/or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and/or required to be
entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO and/or were directly or indirectly
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meeting of any other members of the Group:

BrEXFIHEEEIN  RZEENF+ZA=1T—080 " #%E&
A BVE BRI TR AR B A4 wﬁ&ll(ﬁE%EEi

FHREERBIEXVED) 2 MG - BRGNS ERE

FHERERIBEES MEAE RO EXVEE 7 R8N EAIME AR
DR RIS T 2 AR SRR (B IERIEE 5 M E 140
SO EESRERA 2 e & HE R ) R RES K
E1&PI5E 352 (& 2} E Bt A IGATIE E R iR ik
RARRFEFHTELARIMNEETREMNEARNT R
BE P2 MRS R B o

IERREREMALTRBROREBES 2 BERER

R-BZNF+-_A=+—H stEEMmM U TFALCGE
ARREEHITHRAEE)RARA B Z RN K, AR5
BERREES M GRPIEXVERE2 &30 5F 2 SRR AR
REVRBRTIRE 2w  RER R RALAR AT
RIEE S MRS GHIEIB6GEF 2B TM sk 3k
R RRRMAREEAEEAER TRASBIER
HttK B AR ZBRRAS ERFEZEMERRAREE S
A EE 10% s oA E 2 s

Approximate

Name of Number and class percentage

shareholder Capacity of securities of shareholding

BRREBE g4 EESHERER BHRETS

L &L Limited Beneficial owner 241,500,000 ordinary shares 19.18%
Long position (Note 1)

L & L Limited ERBEAA 241,500,000 A% & i@ A%

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED = {E{tiEpRER AT
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Approximate

Name of Number and class percentage
shareholder Capacity of securities of shareholding
REEH 54 EHHE RER BAREESH
Liu Li Beneficial owner 166,000,000 ordinary shares 13.19%
Long position
2 BEEERA 166,000,000 % & i@ %
&B
Family interest 55,146,000 ordinary shares 4.38%
Long position (Note 2)
NI 55,146,000 i & i A%
&B (Hat2)
Interest of a controlled 241,500,000 ordinary shares 19.18%
corporation Long position (Note 3)
REHEEER 241,500,000 A% & i@ A%
&& (#773)
Eternal Asia (HK) Beneficial owner 159,159,999 ordinary shares 12.64%
Limited Long position (Note 4)
Eternal Asia (HK) BEEERA 159,159,999 & & i@k
Limited &B (Kat4)
Beneficial owner 150,000,000 ordinary shares 11.92%
Short position (Note 4)
EREAA 150,000,000 A% & i A%
mE (M)
wYI T ta e A e g Interest of a controlled 159,159,999 ordinary shares 12.64%
RN BR AR corporation Long position (Note 5)
RYITH G TR e REHEEER 159,159,999 &% I i/ A%
i BIR A A &E (K15t5)
Interest of a controlled 150,000,000 ordinary shares 11.92%
corporation Short position (Note 5)
REHhEEER 150,000,000 A% & @R
MR (Kats)

BE-ZEZEAF+ZA=t—-HLENAERZHRSE
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Approximate

Name of Number and class percentage
shareholder Capacity of securities of shareholding
BRREH ) ® %W E KR BRREES L
Y TS BS Interest of a controlled 159,159,999 ordinary shares 12.64%
BERAER AR corporation Long position (Note 6)
YT B B EEEHEE RS 159,159,999 % & iBA%
IR BR AR &B (Hite)
Interest of a controlled 150,000,000 ordinary shares 11.92%
corporation Short position (Note 6)
R EE RS 150,000,000 A% & 3@A%
meE (Wite)
Zhou Guohui Interest of a controlled 159,159,999 ordinary shares 12.64%
corporation Long position (Note 6)
JEI B 5 SEHLEE R 159,159,999 I & A%
&& (#fite)
Interest of a controlled 150,000,000 ordinary shares 11.92%
corporation Short position (Note 6)
EEHEE RS 150,000,000 % & i@A%
me(Hite)
Potent Growth Limited Beneficial owner 204,600,000 ordinary shares 16.25%
Long position (Note 7)
Potent Growth Limited EnEEA 204,600,000 % % i %
&BE (Wit7)
Zhang Qing Interest of a controlled 204,600,000 ordinary shares 16.25%
corporation Long position (Note 7)
Zhang Qing SEHLEE R 204,600,000 A% I A%
BR (H37)
Notes: et -
1. The entire issued share capital of L & L Limited is equally held by 1. TEMEERERBEIF 295 HE L&L Limited 2 2 FE &
Mr. Li Jialin and his spouse, Madam Liu Li. TR -
2. 55,146,000 shares of the Company are held by Mr. Li Jialin, the 2. ZNAE]:255,146,00008 8 19 R EIFIZ + 2 ELB T EMEERE ©
spouse of Madam Liu Li.
3. 241,500,000 shares of the Company are held by L & L Limited, 3. AT Z 241,500,000 A5 F L & L Limited 54 © M AFZ

the entire issued share capital of which is equally held by Madam
Liu Li and her spouse, Mr. Li Jialin.
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4. The entire issued share capital of Eternal Asia (HK) Limited are
held by A1 B IESEAR D BIR A A].

5. 6.88% and 49.52% of the shares of FYIl T4 e i EHE (D &
R A 7] are held by FIITH & BEEHE AR AR and Z YT
ABIERAE A BR A A respectively. 49.1% of the shares of &I
A BB ER AR are held by RIITE A HBLERERA
Al

6. 92.5% of the shares of &Y E& EH5EAR AR 2 7] are held by
Mr. Zhou Guohui.

7. The entire issued share capital of Potent Growth Limited is owned
by Mr. Zhang Qing.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, so
far is known to the Directors, there was no person who
had an interest and/or a short position in the shares and/
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO and/or required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO and/or was directly or indirectly interested in 10%
of more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meeting of any other members of the Group, or any options
in respect of such capital.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
The Directors consider that they have no interests in any
competing business.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the nine months ended 31 December 2009.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the nine months ended 31 December 2009, the
Group entered into a lease agreement with Joint Honour
Development Limited (“Joint Honour”), a company in which
Mr. Li Jialin is a major shareholder, in respect of a director
quarter. Pursuant to the lease agreement, the Group paid a
monthly rental of HK$200,000 to Joint Honour for a term of
12 months from 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010.
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4. Eternal Asia (HK) Limited 2 2 #8i% 15 B8 7= 31| 716 g i 4 FE S8 Ak 1
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5. FITEE S R RHR AR A A KGRI T & SIS IR B R A R
AR FYITTIE B A ESRAR 1D B R A F 2 6.88% & 49.52%
A& o R EE A FE BRI AR A R] 49.1% 2 & i = I Bt
AR ERARES °

6. RYITHES BISIEIAIR AR 292.6%M M) HE BB L AERA o

7. Potent Growth Limited 2 2 %82 2 1T7A% 2 i Zhang Qing 7t 44
5o
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The above transaction constituted a connected transaction
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Directors are
of the opinion that the above transaction was entered into
on normal commercial terms and at an arm’s length basis
and is fair and reasonable so far as the shareholders of the
Company, taken as a whole, are concerned. The above
connected transaction constituted an exempted connected
transaction under the Listing Rules as each of the applicable
percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) is less than
0.1% under chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS

A summary of the Directors and senior management’s
emoluments is set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the nine
months ended 31 December 2009.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance are set out in the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual
report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company’s audited results for the nine months ended
31 December 2009 have been reviewed by the Audit
committee who was of the opinion that the preparation
of such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate disclosures
have been made.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED = {E{tiEpRER AT
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the nine months ended 31 December 2009 (for
the twelve months ended 31 March 2009: HK3.8 cents).

AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Group for the nine months
ended 31 December 2009 have been audited by KPMG
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Li Jialin

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 31 March 2010
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Independent Auditor’s Report % % Ef R &

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF VST HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of VST Holdings Limited (“The Company”) set out on
pages 42 to 135, which comprise the consolidated and
company balance sheets as at 31 December 2009, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the nine months period ended 31 December 2009, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 December 2009 and of the
Group’s profit and cash flows for the period then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

31 March 2010
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Consolidated Balance Sheet "8 EE&EX
As at 31 December 2009 R =—ZEZhF+_—_A=+—H
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - R MR
Goodwill EES
Available-for-sale financial assets AN EMEEE
Interest in an associate BB & A Bl R
Deferred tax assets BERIBEE
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables E 5 M E MW EIE
Inventories FE
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY
Total assets HmEE
EQUITY =
Share capital (&N
Reserves e
Proposed dividend KRR B,
Minority interests DR RS
Total equity R

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED = {E{t3iERRER AT

31 December 31 March
2009 2009
—EThE  —TENF
t+=A=+-8 Z=A=t+—H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FHBT
116,454 58,325
313,609 298,189
1,612 1,545
40,877 38,561
36,802 26,959
509,354 423,579
3,793,253 2,881,261
1,638,381 1,146,599
450,840 303,572
5,882,474 4,331,432
6,391,828 4,755,011
125,889 109,124
1,516,653 986,118
- 41,500
1,642,542 1,136,742
254,647 214,550
1,897,189 1,351,292




Consolidated Balance Sheet 65 E&EX

As at 31 December 2000 R=ZEZENF+=-HA=1+—H

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Deferred income
Borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Taxation payable

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

43

31 December 31 March
2009 2009
—BERE _BBAF
t=A=t—-R Z=H=t—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FET THET
=0
FFRBEaE
PFRIEUA 4,670 4,978
= 19 522,896 549,992
EERIES & 18 11,150 4,954
538,716 559,924
REBEE
B 5 R E M FIE 17 3,061,306 2,178,769
(== 19 836,760 653,363
FE T I8 57,857 11,663
3,955,923 2,843,795
wWa s 4,494,639 3,403,719
ERRaEREE 6,391,828 4,755,011
REBEEFE 1,926,551 1,487,637
HWEERRBARS 2,435,905 1,911,216
BEON T -TE=- A=+ AHERSRERT -

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors

on 31 March 2010.

Li Jialin
FEM

Director

EF

Tay Eng Hoe
ERIK A

Director

EF

The notes on pages 51 to 135 are an integral part of these

financial statements.

561 £ 135 B 2 MR AR BHRKR 2 — 87 -
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As at 31 December 2000 R=ZZENF+=-A=+—H

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets
Amount due from a subsidiary
Prepayments
Tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY
Share capital
Reserves
Proposed dividend

Total equity

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED = {E{t3iERRER AT

aE
FRBEE
RSB AR ZRE

REBEE
FEM P B X B 3R0R
BNHIA
AU B F IR
RelBReEHED

i
EEEN
fEH
BURALS

s

31 December 31 March

2009 2009

—EThE  —TENF
+=—H=+—-H8 =A=+—H

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B aE FET THT
B 1,732 -
8 1,320,348 1,302,057
1,322,080 1,302,057

64,991 137,397

11 328 222
- 1,477

13 4,282 1,539
69,601 140,635

1,391,681 1,442,692

14 125,889 109,124
16 997,115 761,640
26 - 41,500
1,123,004 912,264
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As at 31 December 2000 R=ZEZENF+=-HA=1+—H

31 December 31 March
2009 2009
—ETAF —ETNF
t=ZA=t—-R =H=1—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T FH&xT T
LIABILITIES af&
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings ==y 19 132,000 198,000
132,000 198,000
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals Hib B RTERER 17 4,677 200,428
Borrowings R 19 132,000 132,000
136,677 332,428
Total liabilities HwEE 268,677 530,428
Total equity and liabilities kB ERE 1,391,681 1,442,692
Net current liabilities REEEFEE (67,076) (191,793
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABEE 1,255,004 1,110,264

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors EFeN T —TF = A=+ AHERBEREIT -
on 31 March 2010.

Li Jialin Tay Eng Hoe
ZEM BRI 0
Director Director

EFE EF

The notes on pages 51 to 135 are an integral part of these F51 2135 B 2 MR IS HKz 2 —3 5 o
financial statements..
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2009 =2 =T hF+=-_A=+—HIENEA

Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other gains, net
Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Operating profit

Finance costs

Share of an associate’s profit
Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the period/year

Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the Company

Minority interests

Earnings per share (HK cents per share)

- Basic

- Diluted

Details of dividends payable to the shareholders of the

—E
SHERMA

EF
HAb W A58
HE KD HRAX

TR

B

e

5 E R

gkl kWGl
BRA A A

BB

B/ FRaM
PEAS

AR A
DB R S

FRAEF GBI B
—H&R

—&g

Company attributable to the profit for the period/year are set

out in note 26.

The notes on pages 51 to 135 are an integral part of these

financial statements.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED = {E{t3iERRER AT

1 April 2009 1 April 2008
to to
31 December 2009 31 March 2009
= —TT)\F
BA—HZ MA—H=Z=
= —TTHE
+=A=t-H =A=t—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BifsE FET FHIT
20 19,705,697 22,091,272
(18,742,990) (21,041,809)
962,707 1,049,463
21 4,271 12,497
(319,443) (395,350)
(199,580) (260,258)
22 447,955 406,352
23 (30,594) (93,094)
417,361 313,258
10 3,353 5,156
420,714 318,414
24 (100,887) (56,605)
319,827 261,809
276,333 231,624
43,494 30,185
319,827 261,809

27
23.86 cents 20.85 cents
23.81 cents 20.85 cents

B,/ F s NN A R RIRR R OB B R B B MR 26 ©

51 =135 B 2B A EHRE 2 — 87 °
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Profit for the period/year

Other comprehensive income for the
period/year, net of tax:

Exchange difference

Available-for-sale financial assets:
net movement in available-for-sale
investment reserve

Total comprehensive income for the
period/year

Attributable to
Equity shareholders of the Company
Minority interests

Total comprehensive income for the
period/year

The notes on pages 51 to 135 are an integral part of these

financial statements.

For the nine months ended 31 December 2000 B2 =T hF+-A=+—HI-NEA

1 April 2009 1 April 2008
to to
31 December 2009 31 March 2009
—ETRE “EENEF
mA—-BZ mA—BZE
= 2k = G
+=A=t+-H =A=t—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
T FAT
1,/ F R F 319,827 261,809
8/ FREMEERA
PR :
b =8 66,436 (84,598)
AMEHEMSEE
A HERERFENEEFE
- 5,327
1 ERNEEWA A
386,263 182,538
FEfh
RRRERFEA 331,296 160,699
VIR R 54,967 21,839
1/ FREEWRA L
386,263 182,538

$£51 =135 B ZMEBRAMBHRER Z —87 °
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity A&z 28R *

For the nine months ended 31 December 2009 & EZ —ZZ A&+ =-A=+—H It @A

Equity

atfributable

tothe

Available- Company's

Capital ~ for-sale equity

Share Share  redemption  investment Captal ~ General  Translation Other  Retained share-  Minority Total
capital  premium  reseve  reseve  reseve  reseve  reserve  reseve  eamings  holders interests equity
9%
g e BEREA b8
R RHEE BERE  RERE  E4EE  -REE  EXBE  EMRRE  REEA  BGEE  RRER 4RE
HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
TAn TR A TEr TR TAn A TR A A TR TR
(Notefl) ~ (Notefil) ~ (Notefii)  (Note(v))  (Note(w)  (Note(i) (Note ()
(B0 OREG)  (R))  (BRm)  (RR6)  (BEM) (i)

Bdlacet 1 Aprl 2008 R-ZENE
BA-BZ&% 111,767 621,621 - (5:327) - 4426 53030 (111,79 AR74 1,105,907 83667 1,189,574
Total comprehensive income for e year — EMAANALE - - - 53 - - (1622 - %164 160699 A8 182538
Acaquistion of an addiiondlnfrestn mOERRNENELT
asubsidry from minorty shereholders EER = - - - - - - (1443 - (4 (129 (145
Disposl of an interest in a subsidary to HENBATEST
minorty shareholders DElR - - - - - - - (104189) - (10418 109,167 5009
Equity-setfled shere-based payment R EREE s - - - - 1078 - - - - 1978 - 1978
Share repurchased )
- parvalue -AE 2643 - - - - - - - - (268 - (2683
- i pad -EHiE - - - - - - . - fosm (o) )
- fransfer Defween resrves o - - 2643 - - - - - 264 - - -
Transfer of reserves EREE - - - - - 4757 - - (71) - - -
Balance at 31 March 2009 NoEENE
=R=t-RkH 109,124 621,621 2643 - 1978 9183 23222) (230362 645,771 1,136,742 214950 131,292
Balence at 1 Aorl 2009 REEENE
BA-B&% 100,124 621,627 2,643 - 1978 9,183 2322 (230362 640,171 1,136,742 2145650 1,361,292
Total comprehensive ncome for e period ~~ HIA2EH AL - - - - - - B4 -6 2 BT 386263
Issue of ordinary shares (Notg 14) EIERR (H14) 16765 15088 - - - - - - - 1 - 10
Devecogrition offranci bty WHELIREE - - - - - - - b - bt - b
Dividends approved nrespect of KEHEZRE
ihe previous year - - - - - - - - Wden (#1467 - (#1.467)
Divicends peic o minorty shareholders P ERE RS - - - - - - - - - - (16697 (16697)
Transfer of reserves SRt - - - - - 1517 - - [7517) - - -
Changes i shereholding n minorty HEAR & = = - = - - - - - - 1357 1357
interest of subsideries RrEaRER(
Fquit-setf! share-based peyment WRIER ZBREEHE - - - = 1830 - - - - 183 40 2300
Balance at 31 December 2009 R-EENE
T2z T-RZER 125,889 112512 2,603 - 3,808 16,700 374 (183871) 873120 1,642,542 24047 1897189

The notes on pages 51 to 135 are an integral part of these 512135 B 7 B A B8Rz 2 —52 5
financial statements.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED = {E{t3iERRER AT



49

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity fR&Em 28R %

For the nine months ended 31 December 2000 B2 =T hF+-A=+—HI-NEA

Notes:

)

(i)

(i)

()

(v)

(vi)

(vil)

The share premium account of the Group includes: (a) the
difference between the nominal values of the share capital of
the subsidiaries acquired and that of the Company issued in
exchange pursuant to the Group reorganisation in April 2002; (b)
the capitalisation issue in April 2002; and (c) the premium arising
from the new issue of shares, net of share issuance costs.

In accordance with the Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business. The share premium may also
be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

The capital redemption reserve comprises the par value of the
cancelled shares of the Company transferred from retained
earnings pursuant to Company’s Law (revised) of the Cayman
Islands.

The available-for-sale investment reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for sale
financial assets until the investments are derecognised or
impaired.

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Company and the Group recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in Note 2.16(d).

According to the current PRC Company Law, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group are required to transfer 10% of their
profits after taxation to statutory surplus reserve until the surplus
reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. For
the purpose of calculating the amount to be transferred to the
reserve, the profit after taxation is the amount determined under
PRC accounting standards. The amount of transfer to this reserve
has to be made before profit distribution to shareholders. In
accordance with the relevant regulations, this reserve may be
used to make up any losses incurred or to increase the registered
capital of the PRC subsidiaries.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in Note 2.3(c).

Other reserve comprises the difference between consideration
paid and the relevant share of the carrying value of net assets
of the subsidiary for the transactions with minority shareholders
(Note 2.2(a)).

Kt -

U

(i)

(i)

(i)

)

(V)

(vii)

PE B 175 BAR BT - (a) IRIF—FFE
A2 EEEHFTHAE [1)8E 2 7] 2 IR A E A
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 8B & REHK

For the nine months ended 31 December 2009 =2 =T hF+=-_A=+—HIENEA

1 April 2009 1 April 2008
to to
31 December 2009 31 March 2009
—EENE ZTEN\F
R—HZ mMA—HZ
—EENF —EENF
+=A=+-H =A=+—-H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BiizE TER FET
Cash flows from operating activities REXBIHRERE
Net cash generated from operations Ay Laa e k| 29 157,320 810,013
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BEREEFIER (7,373) (30,983)
Overseas tax paid BITEINITR (50,967) (64,372)
Net cash generated from operating activities SRS ISR 98,980 724,658
Cash flows from investing activities REEEzHERE
Interest received BUFIE 974 7,030
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENE  BELEE (76,578) (21,546)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEYME  BENRE

and equipment PT{SZUR 9,038 1,060
Proceeds from disposal of HEAHEEMBERE

available-for-sale financial assets PSR - 14,138
Proceeds from disposal of partial interest HERB AR D ER

in a subsidiary FiS5A - 78,642
Acquisition of an additional interest YeBEI B A mIgE I ME R

in a subsidiary - (14,557)
Net cash (used in)/generated from REES(FA)/ 5
investing activities ZBEHE (66,566) 64,767
Cash flows from financing activities BEEZHRERE
Dividends paid [RANEES, (41,467) -
Repurchase of shares BEIRGH - (13,270)
Net proceeds from issue of ordinary shares/ BTLBRAETEFE/
Advances from proposed share placements BEROREME2N 45,883 121,767
New bank borrowings FIBRTEE 2,970,103 4,353,707
Repayment of bank borrowings BRERITEE (2,820,700) (5,147,467)
Payment to minority interests DERR RN (31,354) =
Interest paid BRFIE (30,594) (91,786)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BETBAME/(FR)Z

financing activities Be 58 91,871 (777,049)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Be MBS EYEINFE 124,285 12,376
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April RIME—B7HB4RELZEY 292,235 305,042
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ER2E e 34,320 (25,183)
Cash and cash equivalents W+=—A=+—H/=A=+—H 13

at 31 December/31 March ZHEKREEEY 450,840 292,235

The notes on pages 51 to 135 are an integral part of these

financial statements.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED = {E{t3iERRER AT

51 =135 B Z MR A E®RE 2 87 °



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3k 3k Mi st

GENERAL INFORMATION

VST Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the distribution of information technology
(“IT”) products, provider of enterprise systems and IT
services.

The Company is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. Its principal place
of business is at Unit 1901, 19th Floor, West Tower,
Shun Tak Centre, 168 Connaught Road Central, Hong
Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Pursuant to a written resolution passed on 9
December 2009, the Company changed its financial
year end date from 31 March to 31 December to get
in line with that of ECS Holdings Limited (‘ECS”), the
major subsidiary of the Company.

As a result of the change in the year end date of the
Company, all the comparative figures for the financial
statements and related notes are therefore not entirely
comparable with those of the current period.

These financial statements are presented in thousands
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’'000), unless otherwise
stated. These financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 31
March 2010.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied
to the current period and the prior year presented,
unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt # iz &k &t

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs),
which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASSs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis except that the
available-for-sale financial assets and other
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are stated at their fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt k&R i &t

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)
Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant
effect on the financial statements and estimates
are discussed in Note 4.

The HKICPA has issued one new HKFRS, a
number of amendments to HKFRSs and new
Interpretations that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Of these, the following developments
are relevant to the Group’s financial statements:

o HKFRS 8, Operating segments

o HKAS 1 (revised 2007), Presentation of
financial statements

° Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-
based payment — vesting conditions and
cancellations

o Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial
instruments: Disclosures — improving
disclosures about financial instruments

The amendments to HKFRS 2 have had
no material impact on the Group’s financial
statements as the amendments and
interpretations were consistent with policies
already adopted by the Group. The impact of the
remainder of these developments is as follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt # iz &k &t

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

HKFRS 8 requires segment disclosure
to be based on the way that the Group’s
chief operating decision maker regards
and manages the Group, with the
amounts reported for each reportable
segment being the measures reported
to the Group’s chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of assessing
segment performance and making
decisions about operating matters. The
presentation of segment information
in prior years which was based on a
disaggregation of the Group’s financial
statements into segments based
on related business lines and on
geographical areas is consistent with the
requirements and the adoption of HKFRS
8. Comparative segment information has
been presented in conformity to HKFRS 8.
The adoption of HKFRS 8 did not result in
substantive changes other than changes
to format.

As a result of the adoption of HKAS 1
(revised 2007), details of changes in equity
during the period arising from transactions
with equity shareholders in their capacity
as such have been presented separately
from all other income and expenses
in a revised consolidated statement of
changes in equity. All other items of
income and expense are presented in
the consolidated income statement, if
they are recognised as part of profit or
loss for the period, or otherwise in a new
primary statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
The new format for the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income
and the consolidated statement of
changes in equity has been adopted
and corresponding amounts have
been presented to conform to the new
presentation. This change in presentation
has no effect on reported profit or loss,
total income and expense or net assets for
any period presented.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt k&R i &t

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

As a result of the adoption of the
amendments to HKFRS 7, the
financial statements include expanded
disclosures in note 3 about the fair value
measurement of the Group’s financial
instruments, categorising these fair value
measurements into a three-level fair value
hierarchy according to the extent to which
they are based on observable market
data. The Group has taken advantage of
the transitional provisions set out in the
amendments to HKFRS 7, under which
comparative information for the newly
required disclosures about the fair value
measurements of financial instruments
has not been provided.

2.2 Consolidation

(@)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities controlled by
the Group. Control exists when the Group
has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities. In
assessing control, potential voting rights
that presently are exercisable are taken
into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is
consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that
control ceases. Intra-group balances and
transactions and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt # iz &k &t

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(@)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The purchase method of accounting is
used to account for the acquisition of
subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair value
of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed
at the date of exchange, plus costs directly
attributable to the acquisition.

|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date, irrespective of the extent of any
minority interests. The excess of the
cost of acquisition over the fair value of
the Group’s share of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill
(Note 2.6). If the cost of acquisition is less
than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in income statement.

Minority interests represent the portion of
the net assets of subsidiaries attributable
to interests that are not owned by the
Company, whether directly or indirectly
through subsidiaries, and in respect of
which the Group has not agreed any
additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets
the definition of a financial liability. Minority
interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. Minority
interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the period
between minority interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED = {E{t3iERRER AT

2.

FTESHBREHME(E)
22 #HAREE)

(a)

M AR (&)
AEBFBUEBSTHERASE KRS
HIP B R ASIAR - WA RN S B
PREEEMNNFE  ARTHBRATA
MFTEESRAENAE  NEKREER
FEARRA ©

EEXRAHBRETHAKBOTHRNE
E - MEENRERIARE  ARK
BREREQNFEERTPE  MBA
At RAEM D BRI S o WA AN h
REE GBI BB FEERFE
MEBIERE(HE26) - il
RAMER TR B R B FEEN QT
B AEMERHERERERAMER -

PHBRESEREYIFRARFEES
75 3B Y B A B R A O AR A P A B JB8
REEEFENRY - RAKEY K HE
A E S A N EK AL A ERIME -
KM AEEEAR EHZFRAESE
BHERT FENAMBRAENTE
E-JHBRRESEGABEERARR
BREEDNERBRAARRRER
FBANERD IR - DBBCRMA
AEBEREE/AFEMNBHEEAR
D BBCR B a1 BR R A ) I R A e 15
BAZENDE  REEHEGERANES
IR e



2.

57

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt k&R i &t

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(@)

(b)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Where losses applicable to the minority
exceed the minority’s interest in the equity
of a subsidiary, the excess, and any
further losses applicable to the minority,
are charged against the Group’s interest
except to the extent that the minority has a
binding obligation to, and is able to, make
additional investment to cover the losses.
If the subsidiary subsequently reports
profits, the Group’s interest is allocated
all such profits until the minority’s share of
losses previously absorbed by the Group
has been recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at
cost less provision for impairment losses,
unless the investment is classified as held
for sale.

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the
Group or Company has significant
influence, but not control or joint
control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#& k3 Mi st

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

Associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is
accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale.
Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost and adjusted
thereafter for the post acquisition change
in the Group’s share of the investee’s net
assets and any impairment loss relating
to the investment. The Group’s share of
the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses
for the period are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, whereas
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investee’s other
comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses
exceeds its interest in the associate,
the Group’s interest is reduced to nil
and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf
of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest is the carrying amount of
the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and
its associate are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the investee, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred,
in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3k 3k Mi st

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation

(@)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency
[tems included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”),
which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities are reported
as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as
equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss
as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets such as equities classified
as available-for-sale are included in the
available-for-sale investment reserve in
equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#& k3 Mi st

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation (continued)

()

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each
balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each
income statement are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions); and

@iy all resulting exchange differences
are recognised as a separate
component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign operations, and
of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to equity. When
a foreign operation is sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in equity
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of the gain or loss on
sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt k&R i &t

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are expensed in income
statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the
carrying values of items of property, plant and
equipment, less their estimated residual values,
if any, on a straight line basis over the shorter
of the unexpired period of the anticipated
remaining useful lives of the assets. The useful
lives which have been adopted are summarised
as follows:

Leasehold improvements
HERTFEE
Buildings

BF

Furniture and fixtures
RARKE

Office equipment
WAERE
Computers

B

Motor vehicles

e

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if its
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.7).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

24

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts.
These are included in profit or loss.

Assets under construction

Assets under construction represent property,
plant and equipment under construction and
pending installation and is stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost
includes the costs of construction of buildings,
the costs of plant and machinery and interest
charges arising from borrowings used to finance
these assets during the period of construction
or installation and testing. No provision
for depreciation is made on assets under
construction until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and are available for the
intended use. When the assets concerned
are brought into use, the costs are transferred
to other property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as
stated in Note 2.4 above.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of
an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s
share of the net identifiable assets of the
acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
included in intangible assets. Goodwill on
acquisitions of an associate is included in
investment in an associate and is tested annually
for impairment as part of the overall balance.
Separately recognised goodwill is tested
annually for impairment and carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses (Note 2.7).
Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity
include the carrying amount of goodwiill relating
to the entity sold.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries
and associate and non-financial assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have
not yet been available for use are not subject
to amortisation, which are tested at least
annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised in income
statement for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets
are grouped together into the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of
the cash inflows of other assets or groups of
assets (the “cash-generating unit”). The goodwiill
acquired in a business combination, for the
purpose of impairment testing, is allocated to
those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose. The Company allocates goodwiill
to groups of cash-generating units in the same
geographical location with similar principal
activities.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying
amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or
loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the units and then to reduce the
carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit
(group of units) on a pro rata basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries
and associate and non-financial assets
(continued)

In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to income
statement in the period in which the reversals are
recognised.

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report
in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial period. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial period.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill and available-
for-sale financial assets carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. This is the
case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would
have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial period
to which the interim period relates.

Financial instruments

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. The
management determines the classification of its
investments at initial recognition.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

(@)

(b)

(c)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are held for trading or
are designated as such upon initial
recognition. A financial asset is classified
in this category if acquired principally
for the purpose of selling in the short
term. Derivatives are classified as held
for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current
assets, except for maturities greater
than twelve months after the balance
sheet date. These are classified as non-
current assets. Loans and receivables are
classified as “trade and other receivables”
and “cash and cash equivalents” in the
balance sheet (Notes 2.10 and 2.11).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in
this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless management
intends to dispose of the investment within
twelve months of the balance sheet date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESTHBE#MEE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.8 Financial instruments (continued) 28 &RIEB(E)
Financial assets (continued) MKEE (&)

Regular purchases and sales of investments are TR EEE TN S (REFBAFZESTE

recognised on trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets
not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value
and transaction costs are expensed in profit or
loss. Investments are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried
at fair value. Loans and receivables and held-
to-maturity investments are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or loss arising from changes in fair value
of the financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss category are presented in profit or loss
within “other gains, net” in the period in which
they arise. Dividend income from financial assets
of fair value through profit or loss is recognised
in profit or loss as part of other gains when the
Group’s right to receive payment is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available-for-
sale are recognised in equity.

When securities classified as available-for-sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included
in profit or loss as “gains/losses on disposal
of investments”. Interest on available-for-sale
securities calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in profit or loss. Dividends
on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s
right to receive payments is established.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

The Group assesses at each balance sheet
date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is considered to be impaired if objective
evidence indicates that one or more events
have had a negative effect on the estimated
future cash flows of that asset. In the case of
equity securities classified as available-for-sale,
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is considered
an indicator that the securities are impaired. If
any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised
in profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments and
hedging activities

The Group holds derivative financial instruments
to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate
risk exposures. Embedded derivatives are
separated from the host contract and accounted
for separately if the economic characteristics
and risks of the host contract and the embedded
derivates are not closely related, a separate
instrument with the same terms as the
embedded derivative would meet the definition
of a derivative, and the combined instrument is
not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Financial instruments (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and
hedging activities (continued)

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value; attributable transaction costs
are recognised in profit or loss when incurred.
Subsequent to initial recognition, derivative
financial instruments are measured at fair value.
When a derivative financial instrument is not held
for trading, and is not designated in a qualifying
hedge-relationship, all change in its fair value are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period. Interest expense is recognised on an
effective interest basis.

Inventories

Inventories comprise IT products for distribution
and are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is determined using weighted average cost
formula. The cost of finished goods comprises
all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. It excludes borrowing costs.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9

2.10

Inventories (continued)

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense
in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A
provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to
the original terms of the receivables. Significant
financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency
in payments are considered indicators that
the receivable is impaired. The amount of
the provision is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the effective interest rate. The amount of the
provision is recognised in income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

2.12

2.13

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated cash flow statement.

Share capital

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Repurchase of share

When share capital recognised as equity is
repurchased, the amount of the consideration
paid, which includes directly attributable costs
is recognised as a deduction from equity.
Repurchased shares are presented as a
deduction from total equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated as
cost.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14

2.15

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value
less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings
are stated at amortised cost with any difference
between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

Income tax

Income tax for the period comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated income statement except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised
directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantially enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. However, the deferred tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15

2.16

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and
laws that have been enacted or substantially
enacted at the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred tax
assets are realised or the deferred tax liabilities
are settled. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not discounted.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised. The carrying
amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and associates, except where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the period in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Employee benefits (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Pension obligations

The Group operates defined contribution
plans, the assets of which are held in
separate trustee-administered funds. The
retirement plans are generally funded
by payments from employees and by
the relevant group companies. For
employees in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”), the Group participates
in defined contribution retirement
schemes organised by the relevant local
government in the PRC.

The Group pays contributions to publicly
or privately administered pension
insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group
has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as
an asset to the extent that a cash refund
or a reduction in the future payments is
available.

Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave
are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees
up to the balance sheet date. Employee
entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of
leave.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an
expense for bonuses taking into account
the profit attributable to the Company’s
shareholders. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Employee benefits (continued)

(d)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in
a capital reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using the
trinomial lattice model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted.

Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will
vest.

During the vesting period, the number
of share options that is expected to
vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior
years is charged/credited to profit or
loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the capital reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account)
or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained earnings).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Provisions

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

2.18 Leases

(@)

(b)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of
the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged in
income statement on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

Finance leases

The Group leases certain property, plant
and equipment. Leases of property, plant
and equipment where the Group has
substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
the lease’s commencement at the lower
of the fair value of the leased property and
the present value of the minimum lease
payments.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18

2.19

2.20

Leases (continued)

(b) Finance leases (continued)

Each lease payment is allocated between
the liability and finance charges so as to
achieve a constant rate on the finance
balance outstanding. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges,
are included in borrowings. The interest
element of the finance cost is charged to
income statement over the lease period
S0 as to produce a constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period. The property, plant
and equipment acquired under finance
leases is depreciated over the shorter of
the useful life of the asset and the lease
term.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are regarded as
insurance contracts under which the Group
accepts significant insurance risk from a third
party by agreeing to compensate that party on
the occurrence of a specific event. Provisions
are recognised when it is probable that the
guarantee will be called upon and an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligations.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Segment reporting (continued)

2.21

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided
it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Sale of goods is recognised when
products have been delivered to the
customers which is taken to be the point
in time when the customer has accepted
the products and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

(ii) Service fees
Fees from service maintenance contracts
are recognised over the period of the
contract.

(iii) Project revenue

Revenue on projects is recognised in
the income statement based on the
percentage of completion method,
measured by reference to the percentage
of contract costs incurred to date to
estimated total contract costs for the
contract.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESTHHBRBEE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Revenue recoghnition (continued) 2.21 BB (E)
(iv) Interestincome (iv) FIEWKA
Interest income is recognised as it accrues MEBWAFKA BRI ERGT R -

using the effective interest method.

(v Dividend income v) BREWA
Dividend income is recognised when the & B UL A Tt ST U R AR B A R F B AR ©
right to receive payment is established.

2.22 Dividend distribution 2.22 RE DK
Dividend distribution to the Company’s MARRREDIK R EEEEE (B
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the B s )% B e Rt (R B B M=)
consolidated financial statements in the period B ER A MR AERBEE -

in which the dividends are approved by the
directors (for interim dividends) or approved by
the shareholders (for final dividends).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3 R EER QY E

VALUES

3.1 Financial risk factors 3.1 MEEBREZ
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of RER 7 £ ASTINERK - FXRER - 28
financial risks: foreign exchange risk, interest R RnEERREL B SRR o ANEE R
rate risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk. The BRREETEEZEECRTMSN A ERE -
Group’s overall risk management programme WEKREHANEEH B RROEETTF 5
focuses on the unpredictability of financial 2o

markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Foreign exchange risk (@) IMERR
The Group operates in various countries REBETRBRES  #IKE TR
and is exposed to foreign exchange risk B ZINERK  TEATPRARE -
arising from various currency exposures, 00 MBI - RHREFE - INER
primarily with respect to Chinese Renminbi BIREBINEF L RAREHERS - BFE
(“‘RMB”), the United States Dollar (“US$”), REERBERKEFE -

Singapore Dollar (“S$”), Thai Baht
(“THB”), and Malaysian Ringgit (“RM”).
Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(@)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

To manage the foreign exchange
risk arising from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets
and liabilities, the Group uses foreign
currency forward contracts to reduce
foreign exchange risk. As at 31 December
2009, the Group had outstanding
foreign currency forward contracts with
a total notional amount of approximately
HK$611,680,000 (31 March 2009:
approximately HK$121,676,000).

A 5% strengthening of HK$ against
financial assets and liabilities denominated
in the following currencies other than
the functional currencies of the Group’s
entities at 31 December 2009 and 31
March 2009 would have increased/
(decreased) the post-tax profit in income
statement of the Group and the Company
by the amounts shown below. This
analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant.
The analysis is performed on the same
basis for the year ended 31 March 2009.

RVB AR
Us$ =T

s$ FE T
THB BN

RM 5K

3.

MHEREER N FE(E)

31 BB¥EMEEE)

(a)

SNERBR ()
REBRARREERGMEEREE
MEEZINERK  AEEFAINER
HAEQLURIKINERE - R=ZTZThF
+ZA=+—8 ' AEBXRFE ZH
EREA LB EEL A611,680,000
BT(ZZEZEAE=ZA=+—8: 8
121,676,000 7T) °

BILHUTHEE (KREEZ AR K
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—TETAEF+-_A=F+—HAK-ZTETAN
F=ZA=+—HHE%  RIB=ZEA
O D) MR BRI T o ZD
WTRERFT A S E (BRI 2R ) 4
T o ZOMBEEBE_TETHLF=A
=+ —HBIEFERRZ EXEHET o

Group

bS]
1 April 2009 1 April 2008
to to
31 December 2009 31 March 2009
—EZhF —ETEN\E
A—-BZE mE—HZE
“EZhF “EENE
T=A=+-H =A=t+-H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT
23,876 20,375
(31,865) (17,605)
5,958 2,312
3,423 5,256
4,598 (3,621)

BE-—ZSThE+=-A=+—HUh{EB2Z#H%E =« REPORT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009



80

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt # iz &R T

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(@)

(b)

(c)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

A 5% weakening of HK$ against the above
currencies would have had the equal but
opposite effect on the above currencies to
the amounts shown above, on the basis
that all other variables remain constant.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates and
the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets except for the cash and
cash equivalents, details of which have
been disclosed in Note 13. The Group’s
exposure to changes in interest rates
is mainly attributable to its borrowings,
details of which have been disclosed in
Note 19. Borrowings carried at floating
rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2009, if the interest
rates on bank borrowings had been 100
basis points higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s post-
tax profit for the period would have been
HK$13,584,000 (for the year ended 31
March 2009: HK$12,023,000) lower/
higher, and the Company’s post-tax
profit for the period would have been
HK$2,640,000 (for the year ended 31
March 2009: HK$3,300,000) lower/higher,
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
expense on floating rate bank borrowings.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of trade and other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents
included in the consolidated balance
sheet represents the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets. The exposures to these
credit risks are closely monitored on
an ongoing basis by established credit
policies and procedures.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

()

(d)

Credit risk (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents are mainly
deposited in various financial institutions,
which management believes are of high
quality. Management does not expect
any loss from non-performance by these
counterparties.

The Group has put in place policies to
ensure that sales of products are made
to customers with an appropriate credit
history and the Group performs periodic
credit evaluations of its customers. The
Group’s historical experience in collection
of trade receivables falls within the
recorded allowances. The Group has no
significant concentrations of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management
includes maintaining sufficient cash and
the availability of funding from an adequate
amount of credit facilities. Group treasury
department maintains flexibility in funding
by keeping credit lines available.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of
the Group’s liquidity reserve, comprises
of undrawn facility and cash and cash
equivalents on the basis of expected
cash flows. The table below analyses the
Group’s and the Company’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the
balance sheet to the contractual maturity
date.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (continued)

Group

At 31 December 2009
Borrowings

Finance lease

Trade and other payables

At 31 March 2009
Borrowings

Finance lease

Trade and other payables

Company

At 31 December 2009
Borrowings

Other payables and accruals

At 31 March 2009
Borrowings
Other payables and accruals

KEE
“EERF+ZA=1-H
BITEE

HERE

B o REAMENTIR

ZEENFZA=1-H
RITEE

BEHE
BAREMENER

F0F
“2ENETZA=T-A
RITEE
Rt A FERBERER

“BENFZA=1-H
RiTfEE
EthENTR L RRER
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3.

BERREERAFE(E)

3.1 MBEBREZEE)

(d) REMER(E)

Between Between
Less than 1and 2and After
Total 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years
Bt —-ER -FZ@E WMEREE BRARE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THEL TEL TEL TEL TEL
1,400,961 863,519 502,173 10,781 24,488
1,273 450 823 - =
3,061,306 3,061,306 - - -
1,212,279 659,563 552,716 - -
1,102 245 857 - -
2,178,769 2,178,769 - - -
269,676 134,838 134,838 - -
4,677 4,677 - - -
340,026 138,445 201,581 - -
200,428 200,428 - - -
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3. UBEMEERRAFEE)

VALUES (continued)

3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 EBXREKRER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
net debt/equity ratio. This ratio is calculated
as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including current
and non-current borrowings as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet) less cash and cash
equivalents. Equity is calculated as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet.

The table below analyses the Group’s capital
structure as at 31 December 2009

Total borrowings (Note 19)
Less: Cash and cash

equivalents (Note 13) (Hiz#13)
Net debt EIRFE
Total equity ks
Net debt/equity ratio FRE/ EaE

RIEE (W 19)

AEEEREARNEMNRERTREERER
PR BRER B 35 I EL b R ss ARRAE TR - o
FEA N EARRBIAREEARKA

REFYARBEARE - AEERGABDH
PRS- S8 TRRNEARLR - HITHK
SHEEENTRABERIE

AEERFEME L EERER - R X
REFFERARERSE o FRFRRARE
E(ERGREERBRMTNRB LIERE
EE)BRRE RRNEFEYTE - BaREE
BEABRATE -

TEROMAEER —_ZETNF+_A=+—H
HE AR -

31 December 2009 31 March 2009

—2BhE =
+=RA=+-8 =A=1+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET THT
1,359,656 1,203,355
(450,840) (308,572)
908,316 899,783
1,897,189 1,351,292
0.48 0.67
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The fair values of receivables, bank balances
and other current assets, payables and accruals,
current borrowings and provisions are assumed
to approximate their carrying amounts due to
the short-term maturities of these assets and
liabilities.

The fair value of forward foreign exchange
contracts is determined by using the forward
exchange rates at the reporting date and
comparing to the contractual rates. The fair
value of borrowings is estimated as the present
value of future cash flows, discounted at
current market interest rates for similar financial
institutions.

All financial instruments are carried at amounts
not materially different from their fair values as
at 31 December 2009 and 31 March 2009.
Amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. Given
these terms it is not meaningful to disclose its fair
value.

Financial instruments carried at fair value
The following table presents the carrying value
of financial instruments measured at fair value
at the reporting date across the three levels
of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7,
Financial Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair
value of each financial instrument categorised in
its entirety based on the lowest level of input that
is significant to that fair value measurement. The
levels are defined as follows:

o Level 1 (highest level): fair values
measured using quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
financial instruments

° Level 2: fair values measured using quoted
prices in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques
in which all significant inputs are directly
or indirectly based on observable market
data

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED = {E{t3iERRER AT

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3. BEREMREERAFE(E)
VALUES (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AFEMHE

BHRWRE |RITEBRECRBEE &
HEMNRBAREMNFIR - HRER LG - 1t
FEERABEREHAZIE  EAFEEATR
EREERREERS o

SNERIE SN R FEERAREE BHER
EXRRLEBRADEXRMEE - BN FER
ARRERERENEE - RELUSREEN
BTSN R -

FMESRIAOREANR-_ZETAF+ A
=t—ARZZEENF=A=+—HBHRTE
HEENSBRRE - BUHEB AR R EREHR
AREEMR - TR RAREZREEE - AN
BLER  BMRBEERFENEETA -

AP EESIRZEMTIA
TREINRNHEBRET BV HERELENET
HIERMTA: WEIMRAEZAHEE=EE
R ARFEEIR SR T A ZAREE
MEEMTAZAFEEAHZ A FEENE
BEAZRKEERGABBEMBENE - AR
EZERIAT :

« E-BREBER) : ATHINERMT
RERTIBAMAER RERE) HED
FEE

« ESER: WELEBIAERTSR
18 SO (R AR EAT AR
B B SR E A TRE TS HEAK)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3. HXRREERAFLE(E)
VALUES (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AYEMGEFE)
Financial instruments carried at fair value DAFEEIEZESRIA(E)
(continued)
e Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured o  FEZRENXR(FEREX) : LAGERM(EF
using valuation techniques in which BEABABR WA BRTSEIEAR
any significant input is not based on R ERFEE

observable market data

Group

EEE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EF—EIX EFZEBIR E=EBIR &5t

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET TR FHERT

At 31 December 2009 RZEThF
+=-—A=+—8H
Liabilities =N
Forward foreign R HRINE S £
exchange contracts - 10,592 - 10,592

BE-_ZZhF+-A=+—HLAfEBZ#HE = REPORT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

(a)

(b)

Estimated write-down of inventories to net
realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to net
realisable value based on an assessment of
the realisability of inventories. Write-downs
of inventories are recorded where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be realised.

The identification of write-downs requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where
the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of inventories and write-downs of
inventories in the period in which such estimate
has been changed.

Estimated provision for impairment of trade
receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of
trade receivables based on an assessment of
the recoverability of trade receivables. Provisions
are applied to trade receivables where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible.

The identification of impairment of trade
receivables requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of trade receivables
and impairment loss in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED = {E{tiEpRER AT

4.

EREREET R
() FEMMETSRFE LG

(b)

AEBEREBEFERERE A EMBETFEER
HBHFE - WORBRFEERAEREER
ZEHRERES - R FERRALRK

a8 710G 5 22 R PR K X (T - TR 28R
BRIRRAB R - wE=BEeFEXMbT LR
EPHEFE 2 REERTFEHR -

fhEt B 5 BRI E R E

AEBEREEZRUGIEZ AIKEIERERZ
FHE - LB B EMGRIRBEEL A - W3R
BRBERGHRAEEIRE 2 EHHIFRE
B 2B SRUGIREL RS -

a8 71| 5 e W R SRR (B 7858 PR B B A R o
BEEBRAMNRREM  ARZESTEX
HELRES R E 5 R E 2 REE R
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(c) Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has
suffered any impairment, in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in Note 2.7. The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use

of estimates (Note 6).

In assessing the value-in-use of the goodwill,
management considers changes in economic
conditions and makes assumptions regarding
estimated future cash flows and other factors.
Estimates of future cash flows are highly
subjective and judgements are based on
the Group’s experience and knowledge of
operations. These estimates can be significantly
impacted by many factors including changes in
business and economic conditions, operating

costs, inflation and competition.

(d) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which

such determination is made.

4.

ERERER RIE (E)

()

(d)

fhEtEERE
AREBEGFOREME2.7 Tt &5 BEREL R
& NEETREAARE - ReEELEMMA
WOl eEDREEREBEIEE - ZFHES
ZEREET (FHRE6) °

FAEFENEREER  EEESZTREEE
MEE R A ARRREREFLEE - U
REMAE - At ARRERETDEE - T
RIS SR B8 B o 2 B RN AE L HI T - X5 1
AR R MEEIRIREE AR - Bk
RBEFEZRREZNEATE -

Frig®t

AEBBHNES REEBAEYN - REEMS
BB AFMEAHNE - EHEEBBRE
B FER P RETEDHEARBEELREHRE
B - MZEFFEZRRUBEREN TS AR
ZEBIA - ZEERRTERGEEHRZ
RS RIRSER TR A -
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group

At 1 April 2008

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 March 2009

Opening net book amount
Additions

Transfer

Disposals

Depreciation

Exchange difference

Closing net book amount

At 31 March 2009
and 1 Apri 2009

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Period ended
31 December 2009
Opening net book amount
Additions
Reclassffication
Disposals
Depreciation
Exchange difference

Closing net book amount
At 31 December 2009

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED =

5. Y% BERRZRE
REE
Building
held for
own use
Leasehold carried  Furniture Office Motor  Assets under
improvements atcost and fixtures equipment Computers  vehicles construction  Total
BEER
HE BEAIIE BAR BAE
NEEE g & %8 B B RE HBEE 4%
HK$000  HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn TAn Thn TAn TER TEn ThL Thx
RZEE)\E
mA—H
FRAfE 8,890 8,728 4,895 9,352 28,258 4,920 4975 69,948
SiE (1941) (113) (1,079) (6,111) 269) (1,629 (29) (11,165)
RHFE 6,949 8,615 3,752 3,241 27,989 3,201 4946 58783
HE-TTNE
ZA=+-RILEE
HREE 6,949 8,615 3,752 3,241 27,989 3,291 4946 58783
e 770 535 3,386 3,968 9,538 1823 1526 21,546
4 - - - - 1,007 - (1,007) -
e - - (572) 83 31) (70 - (1,156
i (1951) (272) (1,081) (1,428) (9,989) (1,506) - (16,206
EHEE 230) (1024 450) (398) {1,777) (192) BT) (4,642
HRERSE 5,538 7,854 5,055 5,300 26,338 3,346 4894 58325
REENE
A=Ak
“EN\FmA-A
AR 8,772 8,427 6,202 11,363 35,856 6,144 4894 81658
ZiHE (3,234 (579) (1,147) (6,083) (9518) (2,799) - (23333
REFE 5,538 7,854 5,055 5,300 26,338 3,346 4894 58325
HE ZTNE
T-A=+—B I
BRREE 5,538 7,854 5,055 5,300 26,338 3,346 4894 58325
AE 863 65,084 847 937 4,267 4,007 5713 76578
Exip] - (114) 1971 - (1,777) 251 (331) -
it 622) (6.964) (121) (140) (386) (721) - (8954
it (1452) (449) (1,504) (1,284) (6,59) (1,259) - (12544
EHEE 243 79 274 256 1,075 82 323 3049
HREMTE 4,570 66,207 6,522 5,069 22921 5,706 5459 116,454
REENE
T=A=—H
KAfE 8,948 67,390 8,972 10,918 32,665 9,057 5459 143409
2ifE (4.378) (1,183) (2,450) (5,849) (,744) (3,351) - (2695)
RRFE 4570 66,207 6,522 5,069 22,921 5,706 5459 116,454

BAEERERAR
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

Depreciation expense of HK$12,544,000 has been
charged in administrative expenses for the period
ended 31 December 2009 (for the year ended
31 March 2009: HK$16,206,000).

The net book value of property, plant and equipment
under finance leases as at 31 December 2009 was
HK$ 1,591,000 (31 March 2009: HK$1,099,000).

¥ BERRE(E)

BE_ZZAEt+_-_A=t+—H L™
12,644,000 8 T (BE-TTAF=A=+—HILF
JZ 16,206,000 7T) < TEBEAERTTHRAX EH
Ok -

RERETYE BEEAREBER-_ZZNF+=A
=+—BHEREEEA1,591,0008 T ( ZEEAE=
HA=+—H :1,099,000/&7T) °

Company AT
Motor
vehicles
RE
HK$’000
FET
At 1 April 2008 RZZEZN\FMA—H
Cost [B%N 136
Accumulated depreciation Z:HRE (65)
Net book amount IREFE 71
Year ended 31 March 2009 HE_ETNFE=A=1+—HIFE
Opening net book amount BRFERTEDFE 71
Depreciation e (71)
Closing net book amount BARAREDFE -
At 31 March 2009 and at 1 April 2009 RZEENF=A=+—BER_ZSZTNFNA—H
Cost AME 136
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (136)
Net book amount BREFE =
Period ended 31 December 2009 BE_ZTNF+T-A=1+—HIHH
Opening net book amount BIWIRREDFE -
Additions NE 1,998
Depreciation e (266)
Closing net book amount BRAREFE 1,732
At 31 December 2009 RZEZENF+=—A=+—H
Cost KA 1,998
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (266)

Net book amount BEmFE 1,732

BE-—ZSThE+=-A=+—HUh{EB2Z#H%E =« REPORT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009



920

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#& 3k Mi st

GOODWILL EE
Group
£33
31 December 31 March
2009 2009
—EFhEF —ZETNF
t=A=t—-R Z=A=t+—H8
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Goodwill [EES 313,609 298,189
At 1 April REA—H 298,189 316,291
Exchange difference PE H =R 15,420 (18,102)
At 31 December/31 March W+=A=+—R =A=+—8H 313,609 298,189

Goodwill is allocated to groups of cash generating
units (“CGUS”) in the same geographical location with
similar principal activities. The recoverable amount of
each group of CGUs is determined based on value-in-
use calculations. Cash flow projection for impairment
review is based on budget prepared on the basis
of assumptions reflective of the prevailing market
conditions. Key assumptions used for value-in-use
calculations include:

(@9 Cash flows were projected based on actual
operating results and the five-year business plan.

(b) The anticipated annual revenue growth rate
included in the cash flow projections is 10%
(81 March 2009: 10%).

(c) A pre-tax discount rate at 31 December 2009
of 7.6% (31 March 2009: 7.6%) was applied
in determining the recoverable amount of the
CGUs. The discount rate used reflects the risk-
free rate and the premium for specific risks
relating to the business units.

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent
management’s assessment of future trends in the IT
industry and are based on both external sources and
internal sources and both past performance (historical
data) and its expectations for market development.

Group management believes that any reasonably
possible changes in the above key assumptions applied
are not likely to cause the recoverable amount to be
materially lower than the carrying amount of goodwiill.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED = {E{t3iERRER AT

FENRER - WEATFEXBHRUNREELE
4R - FHAEMIRSEE BN A W E 2 EIRE R
BEETE R/REHREETOHRSRETRANRE
URBRERMRABRIXEERRNOBEIFL - £8
BEMAEERRESE

(@) BRERERBERKCEXRERDFEHEE
Al o

b) BEEREBERERINTEIRGZFERRS
10% (ZEZTNF=A=1+—8 : 10%) °

© Z—ZZEZENFE+-_A=1+—HHHAEBRZRA
76%(ZZEZNF=A=+—"H:76%) ' B
BEETRSEEEMM KBS - BHIRE
f Aok R e 61 2 K A B S 7S BE 6 Y E R B
{go

AREEERRNEESEEBHEMMRERRE
ZHRHE - TIRBASNER - BERE (FELEE)
KRG EROTES

EEEEEIOE DL SHREASDEERET
EETRESBARERHREEE -
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7. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

7. AHEEVMBEE

01 |

Group
REE
31 December 31 March
2009 2009
—BENF —ETNEF
+=ZH=+—-H =R=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Club memberships, at cost BHTEE  BKAE 1,612 1,545
Group
rEH
31 December 31 March
2009 2009
—EThEF —ETNF
+=—A=+—H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FA&T
At 1 April REA—H 1,545 18,621
Disposals k= - (16,815)
Exchange difference [& 5 =58 67 (261)
At 31 December/31 March R+-—A=+—HB/=A=+—H 1,612 1,545
Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in AN E MBS EEN TS EEHE
the following currencies:
Group
rEE
31 December 31 March
2009 2009
—EThEF —ETNF
+=ZA=+—-H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FA&T
S$ TN TT 1,473 1,413
RM Bk 139 132
1,612 1,545

None of the available-for-sale financial assets is neither
past due nor impaired.

AR EMBEEY B BHSRE -

BE-_ZZhF+-A=+—HLAfEBZ#HE = REPORT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
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8. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 8. MRMBARZEE
Company
KA FE]
31 December 31 March
2009 2009
—EEhEF —ETNF
t=A=t—-R Z=AH=t—H8
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
Investments at cost AR
— Shares listed in Singapore — TN £kt 1,218,903 1,218,903
— Unlisted investments, at cost —FELETIRE - KB 101,445 83,154
1,320,348 1,302,057

R-BENF+- A=+ BT ENBARZHE
T

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at
31 December 2009 are as follows:

Particulars of

Place of Principal activities issued share Percentage of
incorporation/ and place of capital/registered interest held
Name establishment operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note a)
AR, TEEER ERITRE sz Sx= Rl
NRER BRI B Fd-biok HEMEARFE E# LifE
(Hfita)
VST Group Limited British Virgin Investment holding, 4 ordinary shares 100% =
Islands British Virgin Islands of US$1 each
BEEEBRAT HERK REER - 4R EREE 100% -
HE REBRLES 1ELZ BB
Shenzhen VST Grand PRC Distribution of IT RMB36,008,612 100% =
Electronic Co., Ltd products in the PRC
AIBEEEETF s RS EEAR AR 36,008,612 7T 100% -
BRAA R EmR
VST Computers Hong Kong Distribution of IT 2 ordinary shares = 100%
(H.K.) Limited products in Hong Kong of HK$1 each
BLEK(FE) 30 REEDHEEA 2R EREE - 100%
ARAF RHREm 18T &R

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

s BELHERAERATE

62,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares
of HK$1 each
62,000,000 f%
SREE1ETZ
ERZERITER
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 8. RKMIBATRZKRE(Z)
Particulars of
Place of Principal activities issued share Percentage of
incorporation/ and place of capital/registered interest held
Name establishment operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note a)
AR, TEEER BRITRAK sz Sx=Raleg
AR joAv:.1 T HEMEARFE HiE LifE:
(Hfita)
IERELSER PRC Distribution of IT RMB10,000,000 - 100%
BRAH products in the PRC
IERELSER h KBS HEA AE#10,000,0007C - 100%
BRAA R Em
ECS Holdings Limited Singapore Investment holding and 365,360,174 89.66% =
distribution of IT products, ordinary shares of
provision of IT services 5$0.3088 each
and enterprise systems
in Singapore
EZNEE T YN I PO FIR BT - 365,360,174 89.66% -
A HEARHREmM Sk EE0.3088
IR H I TT 2 B AR
REEZRS
EC Sure Holdings Thailand Investment holding 196,000 preferred - 89.66%
(Thailand) Co., in Thailand shares, non-accumulative
Limited dividend, Baht 1.25 per
share; and 204,000
ordinary shares,
Baht 1.25 per share
EC Sure Holdings el REEIfE R SR 196,000 (R FAXEI(E 1.25 - 89.66%
(Thailand) Co., Rk BEEZTRE
Limited Btn & 204,000 &A%
HE{E1.25 Rk TR
The Value Systems Thailand Provider of information 7,783,000 shares - 89.66%
Co., Limited technology products of 10 Baht each
and services for IT
infrastructure in Thailand
The Value Systems Z=H ZEIEARRERR 7,783,000 % - 89.66%
Co., Limited BB AR R SEGEIERES S
PRE e Z & tn

BEZ-ZZhF+=-A=1+—HIEN{EAZ#H%E = REPORT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
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8. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 8. RMEBARZERE(E)
Particulars of
Place of Principal activities issued share

Percentage of

incorporation/ and place of capital/registered interest held
Name establishment operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note a)
AR, TEEER BRITRAK/ s SadEhale
NCIECE Jodv: 1 R M ERFEE HiE %
(Hfita)
ECS Computers Singapore Provider of information 13,600,000 ordinary = 89.66%
(Asia) Pte. Ltd technology products shares of S$1 each
and services for IT
infrastructure in Singapore
ECS Computers I BB AR E m 13,600,000 &R E1E - 89.66%
(Asia) Pte. Ltd KA AR R 1R TT 2 B AR
FRES e
Pacific City (Asia Pacific) ~ Singapore Retail of information 150,000 ordinary - 89.66%
Pte Ltd technology products, shares of S$1 each
[T equipment and
accessories in Singapore
Pacific City (Asia Pacific) #7014 I IEIER 150,000 f% - 89.66%
Pte Ltd BB Em FREE 1T
BB RE R 2 EEK
RHZE
Isan System Pte Ltd. Singapore Provision and distribution 2 ordinary shares = 89.66%
of information technology of S$1 each
products and general trading
of IT equipment in Singapore
Isan System Pte Ltd. N3 RETINEIRE R S iHE 2k BRmEE = 89.66%
BEREmREE—R 1R TT 2 B AR
BAREREES
ECS Enterprise Singapore Distribution of IT solutions 5,000,000 ordinary = 89.66%
Solutions Pte Ltd shares of S$1 each
ECS Enterprise Fnsg A HEARREmM 5,000,000 R EREE - 89.66%
Solutions Pte Ltd 1 ¥ T 2 SR
ECS Technology Hong Kong Investment holding, provider 11,500,000 ordinary - 89.66%
(China) Limited of information technology shares of HK$1 each
products and services for
[T infrastructure in Hong Kong
ECS Technology B REBREREER - 11,500,000 =R EE - 89.66%
(China) Limited AR EmRER 18T Bl

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED = {E{t3iERRER AT

PHER R B IR H R
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 8. RKMIBATRZKRE(Z)
Particulars of
Place of Principal activities issued share Percentage of
incorporation/ and place of capital/registered interest held
Name establishment operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note a)
AR, TEEER ERITRE sz Sx=Raleg
AR BRIt 2 T HEMEARFE H# LifE:
(Hfita)
ECS Technology PRC Provider of information US$10,000,000 = 89.66%
(Guangzhou) technology products
Company Limited and services for IT
infrastructure in the PRC
ECS Technology H R SRR ERREA 10,000,000 7T - 89.66%
(Guangzhou) R ERE S e RIS ER
Company Limited
ECS Technology PRC Provider of information US$1,282,000 - 89.66%
Company Limited technology products
and services for IT
infrastructure in the PRC
ECS Technology H RS ER KA 1,282,000 7T - 89.66%
Company Limited R ERE R e RIS e
ECS (Shanghai) PRC Provider of information US$25,000,000 - 89.66%
Management Co., technology products
Ltd (formerly ECS and services for IT
International Trading infrastructure in the PRC
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd)
ECS (Shanghai) & B AR EM R 25,000,000 % 7T - 89.66%
Management Co., BB AR
Ltd (AT ECS PRE e

International Trading
(Shanghai) Company

Limited
ECS China PRC Provider of information US$15,000,000 - 89.66%
Technology (Shanghai) technology products
Company Limited and services for IT
infrastructure in the PRC
ECS China h BB AR Em & 15,000,000 37T - 89.66%
Technology (Shanghai) ERHER R
Company Limited AR5 At rER

BEZ-ZZhF+=-A=1+—HIEN{EAZ#H%E = REPORT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
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8. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 8 RMB AR ZRE (&)
Particulars of
Place of Principal activities issued share Percentage of
incorporation/ and place of capital/registered interest held
Name establishment operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note a)
AR, TEEER BRITRAK/ FrisgEa st
NCIECE Jodv: 1 R M ERFEE HiE LifE
(Hizta)
EIT Info-tech Limited Hong Kong Provider of information US$5,000,000 = 89.66%
technology products
and services for IT
infrastructure in the PRC
EIT Info-tech Limited Bk PR EARRERREA 5,000,000 7T - 89.66%
RHREW R BRI R
ECS Technology Hong Kong Provider of information US$10,000,000 = 89.66%
(HK) Co., Limited technology products
and services for IT
infrastructure in the PRC
ECS Technology 0 PR EARRERREA 10,000,000 7T - 89.66%
(HK) Co., Limited R ER R R R
ECS KUSH Sdn Bhd Malaysia Provision of management 1,000,002 ordinary = 53.80%
services and letting shares of RM1 each
of properties
ECS KUSH Sdn Bhd B ORADR REVEEE REBRS 1,000,002 B EE - 53.80%
1 B8z LBk
ECS KU Sdn Bhd Malaysia Provider of information 400,000 ordinary - 53.80%
technology products shares of RM1 each
and services for IT
infrastructure in Malaysia
ECS KU Sdn Bhd P i BRAEEARRERR 400,000 G R EI{E - 53.80%
B AR EH R RS 1582 LRk
e
ECS Astar Sdn Bhd Malaysia Provider of information 500,000 ordinary - 53.80%
technology products shares of RM1 each
and services for
[T infrastructure in Malaysia
ECS Astar Sdn Bhd P it BRATZEARRERR 500,000 & AR EI{E - 53.80%
BN R B R RS 1582 LRk
e
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 8. MNHEBARZKRE(E)
Particulars of
Place of Principal activities issued share Percentage of
incorporation/ and place of capital/registered interest held
Name establishment operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note a)
AR, TEEER ERITRE sz Sx=Raleg
NCIECE pdvs::E T A ERFE HiE LifE:
(Mizta)
ECS ICT Sdn Bhd Malaysia Investment holding 92,000,000 ordinary shares = 53.80%
in Malaysia of RM 0.5 each.
ECS ICT Sdn Bhd FBRAEE BRATREER 92,000,000 iR B EE - 53.80%
0.5 FH 2 BdR
ECS Pericomp Sdn Bhd ~ Malaysia Provider of information 400,000 ordinary = 43.04%
technology products shares of RM1 each
and services for T
infrastructure in Malaysia
ECS Pericomp SdnBhd 53k ge BRAEGEAMBRERRER 400,000 i BARE1E - 43.04%
RERER R RS LR 1582 LRk
ECS Indo Pte. Ltd Singapore Distributor of information 2,524,785 ordinary = 79.90%
technology products shares, issued and paid up
in Singapore capital: US$1,615,392
ECS Indo Pte. Ltd HT NS IR EARHRE R D HE 2,524,785 REE1T R - 79.90%
BRBAEBA :
1,615,392 7T
PT ECS Indo Jaya Indonesia Distributor of information 100,000 ordinary = 79.90%
technology products shares of US$1 each
in Indonesia
PT ECS Indo Jaya e HEERBRERD #HE 100,000 &R EE - 79.90%
1ET2 BB
ECS Infocom Singapore Investment holding 2 ordinary shares = 89.66%
(Phils) Pte. Ltd in Singapore of S$1 each
ECS Infocom TR PF IR EIREHER 2REBREE 1 FTIRTT - 89.66%
(Phils) Pte. Ltd ZE R
Notes: Bt
(@ Al subsidiaries are limited liability companies except for @ BRRPEKIOMBARAZINEREIN - HAKB R
those established in the PRC, which are wholly-owned RIERERAR]
foreign enterprises.
(b) ECS ICT Bhd (“ECSB”), a Group’s subsidiary, submitted (b) AEE|[fI/E A R ECS ICT Bhd ([ECSBl) R =T NFN

an application for the proposed listing on the Main Market
of Bursa Securities to the Securities Commission of
Malaysia (“SC”) on 18 June 2009. The application was
approved by SC on 1 October 2009.

The public offering of ECSB’s shares for subscription was

from 19 March 2010 to 31 March 2010.

“ETNF+ A —HESCHAE ©

ECSBMBREAE—_Z—ZTF=A+NHAE-T-TF=
A=+—B2 RSN HRE -

BEZ-ZZhF+=-A=1+—HIEN{EAZ#H%E = REPORT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
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9. AMOUNT DUE FROM A SUBSIDIARY 9. EWKWEBQRRE
The amount due from a subsidiary of HK$64,991,000 JiE U B /B /1 B) 3R IE 64,991,000 8 T (ZEZENF = A
(31 March 2009: HK$137,397,000) is unsecured, =+—H : 137,397,000/ L) BEEE - T B K&
interest-free, denominated in HK$ and is repayable on BRERIEEE -
demand.
10. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 10. REZEQATNER
Group
FiN-S
31 December 31 March
2009 2009
—EEhEF —ETNF
+=—A=+—-H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Investment in an associate REEE N RIRIRE 37,363 35,050
Loan to an associate EiANCTN=E1 3,514 3,511
40,877 38,561
At 1 April WIMA—H 35,050 35,445
Share of an associate’s profit D REEE RN A& K 3,353 5156
Dividend income from an associate R E B E R R B U A (4,568) =
Exchange difference E N ZERE 3,528 (5,551)
At 31 December/31 March R+-—A=+—H/ /=A=+—H 37,363 35,050
Loan to an associate EiANCTN= 1 3,514 3,511
40,877 38,561

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED = {E{t3iERRER AT
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INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)
Details of the associate as at 31 December 2009 are
as follows:

10. FW”

AT ()
RoEENET-A=+— AR

HARMFENT

929

Country of Principal Particulars of
Name incorporation activities issued shares held
FrisE81T

=L EEa i) AT FEXK RAD 15

MSI-ECS Phils., Inc Philippines Distribution of IT products 3,097,055 ordinary shares
of Peso 100 each

MSI-ECS Phils., Inc FRE DIHEMBHREmR 3,097,055 R G R EE
100 R 2 EBAX

The effective equity interest held is 44.82% (31 March
2009: 44.82%).

The loan to the associate is denominated in US$ and is
unsecured, interest-free and not repayable within one
year.

The summarised financial information of the associate
as at 31 December 2009 are as follows:

Assets &E
Liabilities =L
Equity e
Revenue Yok
Profit il

BE-ZTAF+ZA=+—BLEABAZHSE

s ERERA44.82% (—EZNF=A=+—H:

44.82%) ©

QESUN
TAR—FAEE

BB RA %Euﬂﬁ ¥ REER - RER

RZZBZENF+_A=+—8 BEQARPKEER
BEaan T -
Group
HEE
31 December 31 March
2009 2009
—EEAE “ETNF
+=ZA=+—-H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT THET
311,062 299,135
(227,700) (220,933)
83,362 78,202
1 April 2009 1 April 2008
to to
31 December 2009 31 March 2009
“EENE “ZTN\F
R—HZE mA—HZE
—EENE “ETNE
+=RA=+-AH =B=+-H
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT THL
682,881 851,728
7,481 11,503

= REPORT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

B 2 MR
T RE R R

Trade receivables
Less: provision for impairment

Trade receivables, net E S e RIB A
Other receivables and prepayments H b eI I8 &
TE{F 508

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect
to trade and other receivables as the Group has large
number of customers and counterparties.

The Group grants credit period to third party
customers ranging from 7 to 60 days, which may be
extended for selected customers depending on their
trade volume and settlement history with the Group.
The ageing analysis of gross trade receivables by
invoice date is as follows:

0 - 30 days 0Z30H

31 - 60 days 312 60H
61 — 90 days 61290 H
Over 90 days HiBo0H

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED = {E{t3iERRER AT

B 5 & H Ath fE W IR
Group Company
PN | PN
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2009 2009 2009 2009
“EThE ZZThE “EEhE —TTNE
+ZA=+-B =A=+—H +t=ZA=+t-B Z=A=1+—H8
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET THT THL
3,332,694 2,430,815 - -
(70,533) (59,529) - -
3,262,161 2,371,286 - -
531,092 509,975 328 222
3,793,253 2,881,261 328 222

HRAREERETPRRHHT  HAKENE
2 R EAMEYRAY BEEEPRER

AEBETE=SEPZEERNF7E60R - M@
FEFPZEEMATIER RIREEAEE R
ZERNFEHRME - EHRWFRBRIZERA
HIETT 2 BRIk D AT R 20 T

Group

REE
31 December 31 March
2009 2009
—EENF —ETNF
+=—A=+—H =HA=1+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
2,052,682 1,379,574
729,197 639,721
266,749 162,579
284,066 248,941
3,332,694 2,430,815
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
As at 31 December 2009, trade receivables of
HK$712,860,000 (31 March 2009: HK$764,514,000),
which were fully performing, were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no recent history of
default. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables
by past due days is as follows:

0 — 30 days 0&230H
31 - 120 days 31&120H
121 — 365 days 1212365 H

As at 31 December 2009, trade receivables of
HK$70,533,000 (81 March 2009: HK$59,529,000)
were impaired and full provision has been made. The
ageing analysis of these receivables is as follows:

0 -90 days
Over 90 days

0Z90H
HiBo0 B

11.

ESREMEWIE(E)
—TEFNF+-_A=1+—H EBEETHNEIRE
W FkIE 712,860,000/ L ( —EENF=A=+—H :
764,514,000 70) BB B ERE - ZERIEHS
BEIUBRFER HREROUTEENCE - 25H
SEWGRIBRAHRER AT T

Group

AEEH
31 December 31 March
2009 2009
—BENF —ETNEF
+=ZH=+—-H =AR=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
559,243 549,673
147,424 183,989
6,193 30,852
712,860 764,514

—ETAFE+-_RA=+—HB BHRKKEA
70,533,000 70 (Z T T NF 1 59,529,000 70) E
BE - WEEHEEEE ZSEKFENERED
M :

Group

REE
31 December 31 March
2009 2009
—EENF —ZTNF
+=—A=+—-H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T
3,333 1,579
67,200 57,950
70,533 59,529

BE-—ZThE+=-A=+—HLEh{EBZ#HE =« REPORT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 11. EZRHEMERRIEE)
Movements on the provision for impairment of trade B 5 EWEIERERENEENT

receivables are as follows:

Group
RE
31 December 31 March
2009 2009
—BENF ZZETNF
+tTZA=+—-H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T
At 1 April RIUA—H 59,529 47,066
Provision for receivable impairment U BB BB A &) 14,064 24,472
Receivables written off during MR IR E BB i g
the period/year as uncollectible BRI E] A FE IR IE (5,188) (8,625)
Exchange difference PE 5 Z=RE 2,128 (3,384)
At 31 December/31 March R+=—B=+—H "=A=+—H 70,533 59,529
The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables Z 5N HAMEWRFEREEL N EEHE
were denominated in the following currencies:
Group Company
PN | b NG|
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2009 2009 2009 2009

“EENE —EThE ZETNE “ETNE
t=A=t-B ZA=+-A t=A=+-B =A=1+-H

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
THER AT THET T
HK$ BT 6,597 4,292 328 222
RvMB AR 1,981,678 1,261,899 - =
S$ T 164,058 228,945 - -
US$ T 708,967 670,331 - -
THB B33 510,789 340,158 - =
RM e 403,690 274,273 - =
Indonesian Rupiah (‘RP’) HERE 17,126 - - -
Philippine Pesos (‘PESO) FRERR(HR]) 348 101,363 - -
3,793,253 2,881,261 328 222

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables EREREEHARRIE - HE S KH b EWFRIEAR

approximate their fair values due to their short-term HEEEQNTERS

maturities.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED = {E{t3iERRER AT
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 11.

The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the
reporting date is the carrying value of the trade and
other receivables above. The Group did not hold any
collateral as security.

The credit quality of trade and other receivables
that are neither past due nor impaired has been
assessed by reference to historical information about
counterparty default rates. The existing counterparties
do not have significant defaults in the past.

INVENTORIES 12.

Inventories on hand FHEEFE

— Held for re-sale — A HEE

— Held for return to suppliers — AR EHER
or exchange to customers HER P ER

Inventories-in-transit HEPFE

Less: provision R B

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense is shown in Note 22.

5 REMEBWRER (&)
RBEAHNEERR LRSS LS 5 N HEMEWR
FIAMBRE(E - NEEY B A ERFRERER -

WEBHIBENE S REMERFENEEER
T2 EXZHFHBERORENFNMG - RARS
HFBELBENEL -

7E

Group

# 4
31 December 31 March
2009 2009
—BBRE  ZFENF
t=RA=+—-8B =A=t—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T
1,418,009 960,850
2,937 3,448
261,382 227,239
(43,947) (44,938)
1,638,381 1,146,599

ERRRAXZFESBZ OERHE22 -

BZ-ZZhFE+=-A=1+—HIEN{EAZ#H%E = REPORT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
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13. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank and in hand

Short-term bank deposits
(Note a)

Cash and cash equivalents

RIERR
ERRE
RHRTER
(Hiita)

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents
were denominated in the following currencies:

HK$

Us$

RMB (Note b)
S$

THB

RM

RP

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED = ZE{{#ERERZA T

BT

e

ARE (Hfith)
AT
R

13. RERRESEEY

Group Company
PN | b NG|

31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2009 2009 2009 2009
“EThE ZZThE “EThE ZZTNE
+=ZA=+-B =A=+—-H +=ZA=+-BH =AR=t1—H
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHT THT THL
405,244 295,233 4,282 1,539
45,596 8,339 - _
450,840 303,572 4,282 1,539

ReFREEEYRABEN T EEE -

Group Company

PN | b NG|

31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2009 2009 2009 2009
“EThE ZZTNE “EThE ZZTNE
+=ZA=+-B =A=+—-H +=ZA=+-BH =R=t—H
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHT THT THL
10,399 11,708 3,464 1,516
136,842 47,041 12 -
180,471 65,072 - _
51,703 116,140 806 23
15,300 2,291 - -
55,251 47,105 - -
874 14,215 - _
450,840 303,572 4,282 1,539
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13. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

Cash,

cash equivalents and bank overdrafts include

the following for the purposes of the consolidated cash
flow statement:

Cash

in the balance sheet

Bank

Notes:

and cash equivalents
overdrafts (Note 19)

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits
was 0.07% (31 March 2009: 1.22%) per annum. These
deposits have an average maturity of 5.1 days (31 March
2009: 3.5 days).

The Group’s bank balances and deposits denominated
in RMB are deposited with banks in the PRC. The
conversion of these RMB denominated balances into
foreign currencies and the remittance of funds out of the
PRC are subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the government of the
PRC.

14. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
2,000,000,000

(31

ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

Pz
March 2009: 2,000,000,000)

2 %A

SRITIBEZ (K7 19)

2,000,000,000
(ZZETNE=A=+—8:
2,000,000,000) B & EIE 0.1 87T

13.

14.

e RALSE (H)
REARSRBMENS He  ReZEMEE
TEEEIETIIEE :

BEABRTHNRESEAS

it -

R

Group

# 4
31 December 31 March
2009 2009
—BBRE  ZFENF
t=RA=+—-B =A=t—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
450,840 303,572
- (11,337)
450,840 292,235

EHBTERZERFENEB007% (ZEThE=A
=+—H :1.22%) - %EGFHR2FHEHE A1 B (=
TENF=A=+—H:35H) -

REBAAREINEZ RITEBREFRDF RN EZ
RIT - HBMZERARBINEZ BB BINERBESE
o B ZR5E ST R B R P AR 2 SN B IR Rl KA @

31 December 31 March
2009 2009
—EThE  —TENAF
tT=A=+—-8A =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THT

200,000 200,000

BE-—ZThE+=-A=+—HLEh{EBZ#HE =« REPORT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
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14. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 14. BAE(E)
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: BETAHRE 2 TR
31 December 2009 31 March 2009
ZERAFTZAZT-H “EENE=A=1—H
Number of Number of
issued ordinary issued ordinary
shares of shares of
HK$0.1 each Par value HK$0.1 each Par value
SREE FREE
0187 0187
0BT ZBET
LERYA HfE TRREE HfE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER AT

At 1 April REA—H 1,091,238,666 109,124  1,117,666,666 111,767

Issue of shares (Note a) BB (Hta) 167,649,999 16,765 - -

Shares repurchased BEBERG - - (26,428,000) (2,643)

At 31 December/31 March Wt=A=+-R/

—A=t—H 1,258,888,665 125,889  1,091,238,666 109,124

Notes: et -

(@  During the period ended 31 December 2009, (@ BEZZTAE+-—A=+—HL-HM ' 167,649,999/%
167,649,999 ordinary shares were issued at a ERRIR TR E B BT ERT - HE ST HEF
consideration of HK$1 per ordinary share. Deposits of ZA=1+—BLFEBKREAEREETZEE121,767,000
HK$121,767,000 for the issue were received in the year 7SI+ #2%E 45,883,00078 7T 2 A HAR ULER o
ended 31 March 2009 and the remaining balance of
HK$45,883,000 was received during the period.

()  Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the (b)  AEEE BRI R AT BEARAE

balance sheet date:

31 December 2009
and 31 March 2009

—ETAE

+=B=+-8

Exercise price R=ZFThEF

Exercise period 1TEH TEE =B=+-—8
20 February 2009 to 19 February 2019 —TThFE-_A=-tAE=T—NAE=A+AhB HK$0.54 5,000,000
Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one BHBIRER THE ARNRE —RARAEER © %

ordinary share of the Company. Further details of these LIRS — T BEN M RRME15 o
options are set out in Note 15 to the financial statements.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED = {E{t3iERRER AT
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15. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

(a)

Share option scheme of the Company

The Company has a share option scheme which
was adopted on 17 April 2002 whereby the
Directors of the Company are authorised, at their
discretion, to invite employees (including both
full time and part time employees, and executive
Directors), non-executive Directors, suppliers,
customers and other corporations or individuals
that provide support to the Group (as defined
in the share option scheme) to take up options
to subscribe for shares of the Company. The
maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the share option
scheme may not exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company. The subscription
price is determined by the Company’s Board of
Directors and will not be less than the higher of
(i) the nominal value of the Company’s ordinary
shares; (i) the closing price of the Company’s
ordinary shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of offer; and (jii) the average closing price
of the Company’s ordinary shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer. The
options vest immediately at the date of grant
and are then exercisable within a period of ten
years. Each share option gives the holders the
right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the
Company.

No share options were granted during the period
ended 31 December 2009. 5,000,000 share
options were granted to an executive director
during the year ended 31 March 2009.

15.

PARAD A 2 S A BRI

(@)

AAFERETE

R-ZZEZ-_FHA++H  ARAICHEH—IE
BIERTE - BHARRESZERENBRS
EE (BEEZBEFREERNTES) « IEH
TES  HER  BREEAEMEASEIRES
B2 ARISRER AL (EELBREE)ER
FERRHE - RIEARR ZIMD - RIRERERT
B FREZERES R 2 RERAOEE T
SRBARARBBEITRAZ10% - REBERAN
RAIZEZEETE  WBTIPRTIZRSE :
()RR B E B 2 EME (i) P EA B 25
BHCBHEHRERMINZARAB L @RS
B R(i)RBEBLHH T AEEEBBRA
B FHBERMYZAARLBEZFHUK
TE - BIRENRHBBNEE YR +F2
HARIAA T111E - SR ERER THE ARE
RAR—REBAL 2 EF) o

HE_TTNAF+-_A=1+—BILHHE HE
REEMBRE BE_TTAF=A=+—
HIEFE - B2 1H15,000,00017 BAE T — R
TEE -

BEZ-ZZhF+=-A=1+—HIEN{EAZ#H%E = REPORT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
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15. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
(continued)

(@) Share option scheme of the Company
(continued)

(i) The terms and conditions of the
grants that existed in the prior year
are as follows, whereby all options are
settled by physical delivery of shares:

Options granted
to a director
— On 20 February 2009 —A=+H
(ii) The number and weighted average
exercise prices of share options are

as follows:
Outstanding at 1 April R A—RBHARITHE
Granted during the period/year A/ ERR T
Outstanding at “t=A=+-R/
31 December/31 March =A=+-H
AT
Exercisable at ®t=ZA=t-8/
31 December/31 March =R=+—A
AT

The options outstanding at 31 December
2009 had an exercise price of HK$0.54
(31 March 2009: HK$0.54) and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 9.2
years (31 March 2009: 9.9 years).

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED = {E{t3iERRER AT

15. LRz EBEEREAE)

(@) ARBERETE(E)

BT —REE 2 MBE
—R=BBAE

) UTHREFEERLBREZFRRRME
% EBRESEBERRTRGE
S

Contractual
Number of Vesting term
options Conditions of options
BREHE BEEG BRESOHER
5,000,000 Nil 2 10 years +4F

(i) BREZHERMEFHTEEDOT :

31 December 2009

31 March 2009

ZBENF+ZA=1-H “ETNF=A=1-H
Weighted Number Weighted Number
average of share average of share
exercise price options exercise price options
MEFHITER BREHE METHTRE BIREHE
HK$0.54 5,000,000 - -
- - HK$0.54 5,000,000
HK$0.54 5,000,000 HK$0.54 5,000,000
HK$0.54 5,000,000 HK$0.54 5,000,000

R-ZBEZNFE+_A=+—BHREKRTE
BB ITEEARQ4BIT(ZEEN
F=A=+—H:054%7T) © MHNEFE
B T ANERAEI2E(ZETNFE=A
=+—H :9.9%F)
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15. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 15. URGBXF 2R EEFIE (£F)
(continued)
(a) Share option scheme of the Company (a) AATBIRETE(E)
(continued)
(ii) Fair value of share options and (iii) BREATLEREBR
assumptions
The fair value of services received in return BMER L EREMESRBE 2 AFED
for share options granted is measured SEMBHERE 2 AFEFE - TR
by reference to the fair value of share HERE . A FEDIREBE=ZEEN G
options granted. The estimate of the fair e BREZAHNFHAER AZE
value of the share options granted is A WIRBITFE 2B AZ BN
measured based on a trinomial model. The BhpE R o
contractual life of the share option is used
as an input into this model. Expectations
of early exercise are incorporated into the
trinomial lattice model.
In the prior year, fair value of share options REF - BREAFERBREEHINET
and assumption are shown as follows:
31 March 2009
—EEhF=A=+—H
Fair value at measurement date REtE2R 82 AFE HK$0.40
0.40%7T
Share price f&(E HK$0.54
0.54 A& TT
Exercise price 116EE HK$0.54
0.54 A& TT
Expected volatility TRERR I8 67.3%
Option life BBR A ] 10 years
T4
Risk-free interest rate B e 81 2 1.7%

The expected volatility is based on the
historic volatility. Expected dividends are
based on historical dividends. Change in
the subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.

TS 0 T DA SR B B R - IR
BRI £ IR B AKE - TBBABR
ZRHAHATFEGHBREARE -

BE-—ZSThE+=-A=+—HUh{EB2Z#H%E =« REPORT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
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15. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
(continued)

(b)

Share option scheme of a subsidiary - ECS
Holdings Limited (“ECS”)

The Company’s subsidiary, ECS, has a share
option scheme, the ECS Share Option Scheme I
(“Scheme I1”), which was adopted on 13
December 2000 whereby the directors of ECS
are authorised, at their discretion, to invite
ECS’s employees and directors, including non-
executive directors of ECS and its subsidiaries
(“ECS Group”) to take up options to subscribe
for shares of ECS. The subscription price is
determined by the ECS’s Board of Directors and
is set either at (i) a price equal to the average of
the last dealt price of ECS’s share for the three
consecutive trading days immediately preceding
the grant of the option (i) a discount to the
market price not exceeding 20% of the market
price in respect of that option. Each share option
gives the holders the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share in ECS. The options vest after
one year from the date of grant and are then
exercisable at any time after the first anniversary
of the grant date and in case of option with
exercise price set at a discount, at any time after
the second anniversary of date of grant and
those granted to non-executive directors are
exercisable up to the fifth anniversary of the date
of grant. The scheme will continue to be in force
at the discretion of the compensation committee
of ECS, subject to a maximum period of ten
years commencing 13 December 2000.

No option was granted under Scheme Il during
the current period and the prior year.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED = {E{t3iERRER AT

15.

MRz EmEE

(b)

RE (&

BB A BMEARBHE AR QT (MEANE ) HEE
R Rt &

AR BB A R EARRHR 2 AP B BERT
gl (I8N R _FFTF+ A+ =AEK
e BUEEARRESTERENBABERNH
BRZRENEZ(BRENNMRLENB AR
(TEARRER ) 2 FRTES) ZRBRE
URBERBRZBRD - EARRZEFTEE
TEREEE R () BF NI BB E B Hia0 = (@2
BR 5B ENBRBON - FEREEZEX ()
SLBERER M ENITE T EBT(ER 20% -
DIERER TR ARBEANR — R EBK
ZHEN - BEEREL AR —FREBY AN
BB Em— FRERTE  MERETEE
BiraE - QAT L B B FREERT(E
BRTHRATESTNBERENNE L BERAF
Z BRI - SHEIZERRBEFWE R 2B
REBELEN A_FTTTFT_A+=HE
RRAHTF -

RANEAR e X F R EARREH &)1 L BB A -
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15. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 15. UGB FzEREERE (&
(continued)
(c) Share option of a subsidiary - ECS Indo Pte (b) F¢E2ATECS Indo Pte Ltd([ ECS Indo |) H &
Ltd (“ECS Indo”) BRAESTE
On 16 October 2009, ECS Indo granted RZZEZNF+A+75H ' ECS Indo[RIECS
120,000 share options to four senior employees Indoft B A RIM I % & A& & 1% i 120,000 11
of a subsidiary of ECS Indo. Each option is, upon IERHE - BHBREN B H1T6ER @ 7]
full payment of the exercise price, convertible BEH/SECS Indo — T E @R - ZEEIRES
into one new ordinary share of ECS Indo. The O ABR=FAA1TE - WAEMZHKGD
options are exercisable at any time within 3 years wEE o
from the grant date and are settled by physical
delivery of shares.
Exercise Options Options Options
price  outstanding at Options Options forfeited outstanding at Exercise
Date of grant per share 1 April 2009 granted exercised orlapsed 31 December 2009 period
RZBBNE RZZBNE
mA-REE gRésE  tA=t-B
LA SROKE  kzBRE  CREBRE  COEERE KUERE  HRORZBRE i
16 October 2009 US$1.8156 = 120,000 6,608 = 113,392 16 October 2009 to
16 October 2012
“EENETATSA 18156%7 - 120,000 6,608 - 113392 “IThE
TATH
fie St 2
TAT7H

The fair value of such equity-settled share-based
payments was determined based on adjusted
market comparables.

AR A 2 i i E R 2 DRI ERNE
AETISA LR AT -

BEZ-ZZhF+=-A=1+—HIEN{EAZ#H%E = REPORT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
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16. RESERVES 16. @&
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REBLEEERSK DB & B R 4 er m0 S BR &1
balances of each component of the Group’s RErEHEREBR - NEBTRRAREFRA A
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated EIREK D BE 2 FEBHN X ¢

statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes
in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the current
period and prior year are set out below:

Company AT
Capital
Share redemption Capital  Retained
premium reserve reserve  earnings Total
-

RiEE HERE E5RE  REET @t
HK§000  HK$'000  HK§000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT THx TAT THL
(Note) (Note) (Note)
(Fzr) (Fitzt) (Fitst)

Balance at 1 April 2008 RIZZ\FMA-H &8 623,310 - - 217,036 840,346
Total comprehensive income for the year FRRANAES - - - (28557)  (28,557)
Equity-settled share-based payment PRS2 2 e i E 50R = = 1,978 = 1,978
Purchase of own shares KERGR :

— premium paid -BXf&EE = = - (10627)  (10,627)

— transfer between reserves —feE s mER = 2,643 = (2,643) -
Balance at 31 March 2009 R-EENF=A=+—HzEH% 623,310 2,643 1,978 175,209 803,140
Representing: i

Reserves E15] 761,640

Proposed dividend BERE 41,500

803,140

Balance at 1 April 2009 RZEENENA—RRER 623,310 2,643 1,978 175,209 803,140
Total comprehensive income for the period el N = = = 84,057 84,557
Dividend approved in respect of the previous year EERENRE - - - (41,467) (41,467)
Issue of ordinary shares BTLER 150,885 - - - 150,885
Balance at 31 December 2009 RIZTNETA=T—RMER  7741% 2,643 1978 218299 997,115
Note: et -
See notes to the consolidated statement of changes in equity for Bz EERER - BRAAAEREEIRE

the nature and purpose of reserves.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED = {E{t3iERRER AT
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17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 17. EFRHMENFIE
Group Company
PN | b NG|
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2009 2009 2009 2009

—EEhE “TETNEF —EENE —TTNF
+=ZA=+-B =A=+—-H +=ZA=+-BH =R=t+—H

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FEL TER T
Trade payables B HEMTE 2,735,012 1,770,285 - -
Other payables and accruals HiENZERBIRER 324,304 405,118 4,677 200,428
Deferred income EIERA 6,660 8,346 - =
3,065,976 2,183,749 4,677 200,428
Less: non-current deferred income W IEREEE A (4,670) (4,980) - =
3,061,306 2,178,769 4,677 200,428
(@) The Group’s suppliers grant credit periods @ AEBZHEEFETAEEZEEHNTI0E
ranging from 30 to 90 days to the Group. The 90 H - BZEMNFIEZRIRDTIT :
ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows:
Group
rEH
31 December 31 March
2009 2009
—EEhF —ETTNF
+=—A=+—H =HA=1+—8H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
0 - 60 days 02 60H 2,639,542 1,732,258
Over 60 days HBiEme0H 95,470 38,027
2,735,012 1,770,285
(o) The carrying amounts of trade payables b) HBERBREHRIIE  ZEE5EMRIENER
approximate to their fair values due to their HEEENTEEES -

short-term maturities.

BE-_ZZhF+-A=+—HLAfEBZ#HE = REPORT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
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17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 17. EZRHEMENRKIEE)
(€) The carrying amounts of trade and other (c) B MkEMPEMFIEREENL T3 E8EHE
payables were denominated in the following
currencies:
Group Company
bS] LN
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2009 2009 2009 2009
“EENE “ZETNE “EThE —EETNF
+ZA=t-H Z=A=+—H +ZA=t-A Z=A=1—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TR THT TR THT
HKS BT 11,259 5,382 4,677 124,234
RMB NG 1,129,069 982,300 - -
S$ T 76,941 197,587 - 76,194
US$ T 1,404,308 535,350 - -
THB 7N 190,282 189,904 - -
RM e 248,842 212,008 - -
RP EfeE 605 56,238 - -
3,061,306 2,178,769 4,677 200,428
18. DEFERRED TAXATION 18. EZEFIE
Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary BEEBRBNIZBEFITHEHEZESHE - ELE
differences under the liability method. Movement in net MBEE/(BE)ZFHEEEBHT :
deferred tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows:
Group
REE
31 December 31 March
2009 2009
—EENF ZZETNF
+tZA=+—H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At 1 April RIMA—H 22,005 13,464
Credited to the consolidated stAGZEIERR
income statement (Note 24) (K13t 24) 2,756 10,255
Exchange difference b 5 Z=5E 891 (1,714)
At 31 December/31 March Nt+t=BA=t+—8B "=BA=+—H 25,652 22,005

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED = {E{t3iERRER AT



115'

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt # sk &R i &t

18. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

Movements of the gross deferred tax assets and

18. EZERIE (&)

liabilities during the period/year are as follows:

Inventories and trade
receivables provisions

At 1 April

Credited to the consolidated
income statement

Exchange difference

At 31 December/31 March

Accelerated tax depreciation

At 1 April

Charged to the consolidated
income statement

Exchange difference

At 31 December/31 March

B FNRRERREER A ERBEHMT

Group
AEME
31 December 31 March
2009 2009
—EBHhE —ETHhEF
+=-—A=+—8B =A=+—H
FERESER HK$’000 HK$’000
BRI FET FiBT
REA—H 26,959 17,281
FFAGREIEER
8,624 11,761
fEH =58 1,219 (2,083)
W+—A=+—R /=A=+—8 36,802 26,959
Group
AEE
31 December 31 March
2009 2009
—EBHhE —ETNF
t=A=t—-R Z=H=t—H
IEBIBITE HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FBT
KU A—H (4,954) (3,817)
FFAGREIEER
(5,868) (1,508)
fEH =5 (328) 369
Rt+t=-—A=+—H8/=A=+—H (11,150) (4,954)

BE-_ZZhF+-A=+—HLAfEBZ#HE = REPORT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
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19. BORROWINGS 19. B&
Group Company
X&E NG|
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2009 2009 2009 2009

—2ThEF “BENEF —2ZhF “EENF
+ZA=+-B Z=ZA=t-H +ZA=t+-B Z=A=t-H

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BitzE TET THT THRT THL
Non-current FERB
Unsecured bank borrowings ERFHIEE @ 351,531 351,135 - =
Secured bank borrowings BEEMBTEE (b) 132,000 198,000 132,000 198,000
Secured mortgage loan BEFRIBEN ) 38,542 = - =
Finance lease liabilities HEREAR (d) 823 857 - -
522,896 549,992 132,000 198,000
Current TE
Bank overdrafts (Note 13) BITES (H17#13) - 11,337 - =
Unsecured bank borrowings ERFBETEE (@ 700,746 509,781 - =
Secured bank borrowings BIEBRITEE (b) 132,000 132,000 132,000 132,000
Secured mortgage loan BHEBZIRER © 3,564 = - =
Finance lease liabilities HEAMERE (@ 450 245 - =
836,760 653,363 132,000 132,000
Total borrowings BEE G 1,359,656 1,203,355 264,000 330,000
Notes: Bt
(@) Unsecured bank borrowings (a) |IKHBITHEE

The loans are unsecured and bear interest at rate as
disclosed in section (e) below. The loans are repayable
within twelve months except for a syndicated loan amount
of HK$351,531,000 (31 March 2009: HK$351,135,000)
which is repayable on 18 January 2011. A negative
pledge has given in respect of all of the assets of certain
subsidiaries with total net book value at 31 December
2009 of approximately HK$1,365,000,000 (31 March
2009: approximately HK$1,183,000,000).

Secured bank borrowings

The term loan facility bears interest at HIBOR plus 2.0%
and has a term of three years commencing from the date
of the Term Loan Facility Agreement and repayable in five
equal instalments started on 30 September 2009 with the
remaining instalments repayable semi-annually. The loan
is secured by 51% shares of ECS Holdings Limited owned
by the Company.

Secured mortgage loan

The loan is secured by a building with net book value
of HK$64,759,000 as at 31 December 2009 (31 March
2009: nil).

Finance lease liabilities
Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the
leased asset revert to the lessor in the event of default.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED = {E{3iERRER AT

ERAERERIZ T X (6) B 2 FIEFT & - BRAR12
& A REE - #REE 351,531,000 L (=ZEZF N
F£=HA=+—Q :351,135,00087T) BIZBR —FE——4F
—B+N\BEE - BN _EThFE+_A=+—H#&
BREF{E491,365,000,0008 7T (—ETNE=A=+—
H : #1,183,000,000% 7T ) KIFT BB A R B EEL T
HIRE -

BEMBRITEE
EHERBEREBRITRAERSM2.0%:HE - HEH
ENmEHzBBEAAH=F  SOHUEESEE
B BHER-_ZTAFNAA=THEN - KBRS
BEYFEN - BFARRREAEARRAR QAR
T2 51% HEH -

BERREBER
R-ZFEZNFE+_A=+—H8 EXHEEFES
64,759,000 T2 EFREER(R=ZZTNLF=A
=+—8:&)-

BMERNEE
HRENREEEENENGE THEA  HHEEE
BERBER -
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19. BORROWINGS (continued) 19. BE (&)
Notes: (continued) Bt : (48)
(d)  Finance lease liabilities (continued) (d ®EHENEEGE)
Group
AEE
31 December 31 March
2009 2009
—EThE —ZENGF
+t=A=+—8 =A=1+—8
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Gross finance lease liabilities REREAEAE
— minimum lease payments: —&EAEHE :
No later than one year —&FR 589 265
Later than one year but —FERF
no later than five years 1,062 934
1,651 1,199
Future finance charges on REHE AR
finance leases A H (378) @7)
1,273 1,102
The present value of finance REHESEEN
lease liabilities is as follows: BEWNT :
No later than one year —FR 450 245
Later than one year but no —FERF
later than five years 823 857
1,273 1,102
(e) At 31 December 2009, the Group’s borrowings were e R-ZETNF+-_A=1+—H AEEREENEEN
repayable as follows: N
Group Company
x| KA
Bank borrowing Financial
and overdrafts lease liabilities Total Bank borrowing
RITRERER BEHEER At BITEE
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2009 2009 2009 2009 2009 2009 2009 2009
ceEAE  CIBNF CEEAE SR CEEAE CEEAE SREAF SRR
tZB=t-B ZA=t-HA +ZA=t-B =ZA=t-H t-A=+-B ZA=t+-RB tZA=+-B ZA=t-A

HK$000  HKGO00  HKS000  HKEO00D  HKS000  HKS0O0  HK§O000  HK$O000
TR TAT TR TR TR TR TER T

Within 1 year —£R 836,310 653,118 450 245 836,760 653,363 132,000 132,000
Between 1 and 2 years —EEHE 487,095 549,135 823 857 487,918 549,992 132,000 198,000
Between 2 and 5 years MEERE 10,692 - - - 10,692 - - -
After 5 years BARF 24,266 - - - 24,266 - - -

1,358,383 1202253 1,273 1102 12350656 1203355 264,000 330,000

BE-_ZZhF+-A=+—HLAfEBZ#HE = REPORT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
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19. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

The effective interest rates were as follows:

Bank overdrafts

Unsecured bank borrowings
Secured bank borrowings
Secured mortgage loan
Finance lease liabilities

RITEX
ISR IRTTH
B EIRIRITIEE
BRI ER
MAHEAE

&
&

o M

The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate to their fair

values.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings were denominated in the

following currencies:

HK$
RMB
S$
us$
THB
RM

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED = {E{t3iERRER AT

BT
ARE
AN T
£
=73

19 fEE(#)
Wiz - (&)

BEERFIEAT -

31 December 31 March
2009 2009
—EThE —ZENEF
+=A=+—-~ =A=+—H
Nil £& 6.50%-10.00%
1.75%-5.12% 1.68%-6.35%
2.08% 3.49%
0.83% Nil £&
8.00% 10.00%
EBENREEREATERES
BEMNREENTIIEEHE
Group Company
rEE PN
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2009 2009 2009 2009
—EENE ZZTNEF —EENE ZZETNEF
+=ZA=+—HB Z=ZA=+—H +tZA=+—H =A=t+—H
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FAET FET FAT
306,106 330,000 264,000 330,000
143,006 150,583 - -
51,152 30,600 - -
617,071 453,216 - -
124,466 95,549 - -
117,855 143,407 - -
1,359,656 1,203,355 264,000 330,000
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
Segment information has been prepared in a manner
consistent with the information used by the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes
of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments. The Group’s most
senior executive management has been identified as
the Board. In this regard, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by
those segments and the expenses incurred by those
segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is the
segment results, including items specifically attributed
to individual segments, such as directors’ and
auditors’ remuneration and other administration costs
within the segment.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the period/
year is set out below.

20.

EXRBERDBEH

DHER DR AKE 2 2 BITREEA BTG

DEERBRDEHEEREEMBER —H2TAM

el AEBZRETHRERZABRESE - it
AEEZEEBTREREABRUTEEEE

BRI 2HOEBEIGZFE

Yoes I A ST IR AT 3R 5 0 BREE AR MO SH SRR IR EE AR 9 B

Y OREZEDE ©

BEDBENZFBIDERD MRS - BREERND
R RIRGENIER - fINEE RS M H M
DEARTTRFAX °

B/ FRNAEEBERD B R E D HRER 2 TR
ENEERT

(a) Business segments (@) XK

The main business segments of the Group are NEBNTEEBRS LW -

the following:

Segments Principal activities

2 FEEK

Distribution Distribution of IT products (desktop PCs, notebooks, handhelds, printers,
harddisk, memory device, etc) for the commercial and consumer markets.

Pak s REAZEXBEETSDHEMMRER (R LEK E2XFALEN - FRE

Enterprise systems

B ATENME - FEER - RCEREF) o

Provider of enterprise system tools (middleware, operating systems, Unix/
NT servers, databases, storage and security products) for IT infrastructure.
BB AR RER R ERG T A (REME - BIERL - UniNT IR7%525 -
HgE - BERRTER) HER

[T infrastructure design and implementation, training, maintenance and

JJ'_%/ \/}L
[T services

support servioes
BB RS BB AR

BE-ZZAF+-A=t—HILEAERZHSE

HERRAT BT ~ 1R B RSIR AR o

= REPORT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
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20. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 20. EEBERIPER(E)
(continued)
(a) Business segments (continued) (@ EEE2HAHIN XK (E)
The segment results for the period ended BE_ZENF+_A=+—HIHENE
31 December 2009 are as follows: HEEMT -
Enterprise
Distribution systems T services Group
Pk TERFE EMRBER%E REE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEx FEx FEx
Total segment revenue DR ER 14,632,381 4,954,181 119,135 19,705,697
Segment results DEEE 306,091 135,049 6,815 447,955
Finance costs BiEER (30,594)
417,361
Share of an associate’s profit S5 EE4 A & F 3,353
Profit before taxation BREL RS R 420,714
Taxation aE] (100,887)
Profit for the period HREF 319,827
Reportable segment assets TH% 5 HEE 3,805,444 1,429,810 34,733 5,269,987

HE_ZTNAF=A=+—HBILHRAND X

The segment results for the year ended

31 March 2009 are as follows: EOE
Enterprise

Distribution systems IT services Group

VK= RERG EARERS rEE

HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FHIT FHAT THT THT

Total segment revenue DB 15,704,415 6,208,121 178,736 22,091,272
Segment results DEEE 265,757 130,002 10,593 406,352
Finance costs % E (93,094)
313,258

Share of an associate’s profit 55 EE% A 53 F 5,156
Profit before taxation BB AR R 318,414
Taxation fi1a (56,605)
Profit for the year FEEF 261,809
Reportable segment assets A& HEE 2,613,024 1,255,850 33,527 3,802,401

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED = {E{t3iERRER AT
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20. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

(b)

(c)

Reconciliations of reportable segment
profit or loss and assets

Profit
Reconciliation of segment profit to the profit for
the period in the consolidated income statement

20. BEERIBES(E)

(b) TEHE

=l
A 0 8B A SR AR A 1B ek
R - A E25FEeBE

T EENHEREREENHER

121

Sk FT 2 5 EA At A
5 2% 73 B ) 22 5

is not presented as the segment profit is the PR3 | O 21 BE o
same as the profit for the period presented in the
consolidated income statement.
31 December 31 March
2009 2009
—EEhF —ETNF
+=—A=+—H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FAT
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AR D e EE 5,269,987 3,802,401
Goodwill FEES 313,609 298,189
Available-for-sale financial assets 7] HE M E = 1,612 1,545
Interest in an associate REEE N RRER 40,877 38,561
Deferred tax assets FEEFIIRE EE 36,802 26,959
Other receivables and prepayments EL b & U sk T8 K2 T R I8 278,101 283,784
Cash and cash equivalents Be MReEEY 450,840 303,572
Consolidated total assets LR BEE 6,391,828 4,755,011

Geographical information

The Group’s three business segments operate
in five main geographical areas: China, Thailand,
Malaysia, Singapore and Indonesia.

Revenue e

China I
Thailand Eo3E
Malaysia SRAE
Singapore AR
Indonesia gfe

Total segment revenue o e Bl E

Revenue is allocated based on the country in
which the customer is located.

BE-ZTAF+ZA=+—BLEABAZHSE

(c) HEER

AEEN=EXHGIBELEETEELE
PR - B - FRAD - IR KRENE

1 April 2009 1 April 2008
to to

31 December 2009 31 March 2009
—EENE “TETNF
A—HZE WA—HZ
—2ThE “TING
+=B=+-H =B=+-8
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR THL
13,001,747 14,493,132
2,169,045 2,544,669
2,353,720 2,725,310
1,148,052 1,535,239
1,033,133 792,922
19,705,697 22,091,272

WastR B P AT EBRZR DR -

= REPORT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
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(continued)

20. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(c) Geographical information (continued)

Assets
China
Thailand
Malaysia
Singapore
Indonesia

Total segment assets

&E
e
Z=E
Y i
Fhni
Elfe

7 BB AR

Reportable segment assets are allocated based

on where the assets are located.

OTHER GAINS, NET

Interest income

Loss on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets

Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Net fair value gain of derivative
financial instruments

Net exchange gain

Other income

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED = {E{t3iERRER AT

MBHA

20.

21.

LERENRSBES(E)

(c) HEER(E)

31 December 31 March
2009 2009
—EENF —ZETNF
+=—A=+—-H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx T
3,226,255 2,085,633
685,243 501,294
586,475 460,454
338,494 523,607
433,520 231,413
5,269,987 3,802,401

AHEDHEERBEEMEHDA -

HEHHEMBEE  BE

HENE  BERRME NE/ (BE)

TAESRMIANRTEKES

B S a3
At

H A\ FEE
1 April 2009 1 April 2008
to to
31 December 2009 31 March 2009
“EEhE “EI\EF
WA—-RAZE HWA—BZ
e “EThE
+=A=+-H ZA=t+-8
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET THL
974 9,233
- (8,004)
84 (96)

T

771 1,718
773 5,987
1,669 3,659
4,271 12,497
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22. OPERATING PROFIT

22,

Operating profit is derived after charging the following:

Cost of inventories
Staff costs, including directors” emoluments
— Salaries, allowance and welfare
- Provident fund contributions
Equity-settled share-based payment
Operating lease rentals in respect of
premises and warehouse
Auditors’ remuneration
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
Provision for and written off of inventories

Provision for and written off of trade receivables

23. FINANCE COSTS

Interest expense on:
- Bank overdrafts
- Unsecured bank borrowings
— Secured bank borrowings
— Notional interest on put option
— Finance lease liabilities

BE-ZTAF+ZA=+—BLEABAZHSE

FERA
BTRA(BREZME)
—F& - RARAEN

—RREHH
BRI 2 R EE TR
NERERCRENERS

wEEHe
ER U i

FERERMEH
B 5 I A R

23.

THERBZMERX :
—RITEX
—BERRTER
—BERRTEE
— R BN ENE
-REHEEAE

REER
R MEHR AT BB

1 April 2009 1 April 2008
to to
31 December 2009 31 March 2009
—EENE “ZENE
R—BZ% WA—BZ
—EENE “ZTNE
+=-A=+-H ZA=t+-8
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET THL
18,742,710 21,021,114
262,085 309,506
28,614 25,530
2,300 1,978
28,576 35,546
5,219 6,875
12,544 16,206
3,017 20,695
15,005 24,472

Bk EH
1 April 2009 1 April 2008
to to
31 December 2009 31 March 2009
= Ok “TTNE
R—HZE mA—HZE
“EENE “ETNE
+=A=+-H =B=+-H
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THL
42 6,300
25,418 55,977
5,027 27,819
- 2,922
107 76
30,594 93,094

= REPORT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
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24. TAXATION

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated

income statement represents:

Current taxation
- Hong Kong Profits Tax
- Overseas taxation
Under/(over)-provision of Hong Kong
Profits Tax in prior years
Under/(over)-provision of overseas
taxation in prior years
Deferred taxation (Note 18)

MR
—BEHIEH
—BIMIR

24,

BiIE

RER B BRI 2 BHIATIEE

BEFEERTIGHIR /(B &R

BEFEEIMUATR /(B BiE

BRI (f7E 18)

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (for the year ended 31 March 2009: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profit for the period.

Overseas taxation has been calculated based on the
estimated assessable profit for the period/year at rates
of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the

Group operates.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED = {E{t3iERRER AT

1 April 2009 1 April 2008

to to

31 December 2009 31 March 2009
—EENE “TENF
R—BZ% WA—BZ
—EENE “TTNF
+=-A=+-H ZA=t+-8
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET THL
25,673 24,065

75,640 49,412

1,714 (259)

616 (6,358)

(2,756) (10,255)

100,887 56,605

HIRBEAMNEH I R ARG ERTE N A 16.5%

(BEr—T=

el -

NEFE=A=+—BILFE : 16.5%) e

EONRIEIRE, N2 R B R A A £ S
SRR EEMBIRE o
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24. TAXATION (continued)

25.

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation

24. HIE ()

AEBBRBATG N 2 HIREERTFER KA E 28

differs from the theoretical amount that would arise meREsERENMT
using the taxation rate of Hong Kong as follows:
1 April 2009 1 April 2008
to to
31 December 2009 31 March 2009
—EENE —TEN\E
RA-BZ HA—RZ
—EENE —ETNE
+=A=+-H =A=+-H
HK$000 HK$'000
THER TR
Profit before taxation BRB A& 420,714 318,414
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (for the BHiEA16.5% (HE_SENGF=A=1t—H
year ended 31 March 2009: 16.5%) HFE : 16.5%) B2 HE 69,418 52,538
Effect of different tax rates in different NEABB AR MR E 2 2
tax jurisdictions 12,139 6,629
Income not subject to taxation BERM WA (704) (1,793
Expenses not deductible for HBBMmE MR FX
taxation purposes 6,373 6,482
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BEEBIAR/ (BE) Bfe 2,330 6,617)
Tax losses for which no deferred tax WERRELHEBRENHESRE
assets were recognised 4,902 3,250
Utilisation of tax losses previously AR AR 2 HIBER
not recognised (96) (3,884)
Tax effect of withholding tax of profit HERBARRFRERNHBEE
from PRC subsidiaries 6,525 -
Taxation charge FiES 100,887 56,605
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS 25. 4T IR EFE(L A
OF THE COMPANY
The profit attributable to shareholders of the Company BE_TTAE+—_A=+—HBIFHE RA

for the period ended 31 December 2009 is dealt with
in the financial statements of the Company to the
extent of a profit of HK$37,455,000 (for the year ended
31 March 2009: loss of HK$28,557,000).

RAEIRE R 2 AQ AR E SR AR
37,455,000 BTL(BE—ZETNF=A=1+—HIL*F
€ : §51828,557,000/87T) °

BZ-ZZhFE+=-A=1+—HIEN{EAZ#H%E = REPORT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
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DIVIDENDS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 26.
SHAREHOLDERS
The directors do not recommend the payment EETERRNEE

of a final dividend in respect of the period
ended 31 December 2009
(31 March 2009: HK3.8 cents).

ZRERE

The proposed final dividend after the balance sheet
date was not recognised as a liability at the balance
sheet date.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of HK$276,333,000 (for the year ended
31 March 2009: HK$231,624,000) and the weighted
average of 1,158,146,000 shares (for the year ended
31 March 2009: 1,111,029,000 shares) in issue during
the period.

Issued ordinary shares

at 1 April (thousands)
Issue of ordinary shares
Effect of shares repurchased

BTEER
BORHFE

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

at 31 December/31 March (thousands) LR IMEF 2 (F5)
Basic eamings per share BREAEF
(HK cents per share) (BRRAL)

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED = {E{t3iERRER AT

(ZZBNF=A=1—H : 38%(l) -

27.

“ETNFTZA=t—HILHR

EREEAEBLRE

1 April 2009 1 April 2008

to to

31 December 2009 31 March 2009
—EENE “ZENE
WA—HZE HA—RZ
—EENE “ZTNE
+=ZA=+-H =A=+-H
HK$000 HK$'000

THER TR
41,500

REERRBRRPREST BN EEARARAE -

BRER

A

BREARBFTIBBEHAANR AESEFEAERGG
#1276,333,000 8 T (HEZE—TEZThhF=A=+—H
LEFE : 231,624,0007870) AR B BTG 2 i
F19%01,158,146,000f (B2 =TT NF=A=+—
BIEFE ¢ 1,111,029,000 %) mzt& -

REA—BRTEER(TE)

W+t=ZA=t-B/=R=1+-8

1 April 2009 1 April 2008
to to

31 December 2009 31 March 2009
“EENE “ZTN\F
R—HZE mA—HZE
—EENE “ETNE
t=A=t-H =A=t-H
1,091,239 1,117,667
66,907 -

- (6,638)

1,158,146 1,111,029
23.86 20.85
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EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

Diluted

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the
period is based on the profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of HK$276,333,000 (for
the year ended 31 March 2009: HK$231,624,000)
and the weighted average number of shares of
1,160,351,000 (for the year ended 31 March 2009:
1,111,065,000 shares), calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue (thousands)

27. BRER(Z)

AEEZ BRE SR TIRA N BRI ARG
276,333,000 8 T (BAZE =TT NF=H="+—
H I E : 231,624,000 70 ) &A% D IN#E F 5 &
1,160,351,000% (B2 —EZNFE=A=+—HItF
f€ :1,111,065,000 %) st &40 T :

Adjustment for assumed conversion
of share options (thousands)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
diluted earnings per share (thousands)

Diluted earnings per share
(HK cents per share)

1 April 2009 1 April 2008
to to
31 December 2009 31 March 2009
—BINF “ERNEF
R—BZ% WA—HZ
—BINF —2TNE
tZA=1-H =A=1-H
BRI RRIMETHSE (T3
1,158,146 1,111,029
BRER B 2 A% (T5)
2,205 36
FTERREERF 2 TER
IEFHE (T 1,160,351 1,111,085
SR#ERF
(BRI 23.81 20.85

BE-—ZThE+=-A=+—HLEh{EBZ#HE =« REPORT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
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28. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 28. EENSREEENE

EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments (@ E=M<
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or RE FRENERENFARBES S E
payable to Directors of the Company during the FAIAE ¢

period/year are as follows:

1 April 2009 1 April 2008
to to
31 December 2009 31 March 2009
“EENF ZETN\EF
WA—HZE WA—BZ
“EENEF ZETNEF
+=ZA=+-8 =A=+-H
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR THL
Fees e 242 307
Other emoluments Hivie
- Basic salaries and —EAF e REEER
housing allowances 8,220 9,995
- Discretionary bonus —BiEEa 800 6,498
- Contributions to pension —RIKETEIR
scheme 280 357
— Equity-settled share-based — ARz et E SR
payments - 1,978
9,542 19,135

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED = {E{t3iERRER AT
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28. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)
The remuneration of each Director for the
period ended 31 December 2009 is set out

below:

Name of Director

E3n4

Executive Directors
Li Jialin
Tay Eng Hoe
Ong Wei Hiam, William
Chan Hoi Chau (j
Mao Xianggjan (i)

Independent non-execuitive Directors
Chan Po Fun, Peter
Ni Zhenwei
Li Wei

Notes:

28. EERSHREEEME

() ES=Me(#E)
REBEEZ2_ZFNF+_A=+—HIHH ' &
EFMeHFWT -
Basic salaries Contribution  Equity-settled
and housing  Discretionary  to pension share-based
Fees allowance bouns scheme payment Total
EXEER BEE NRfBAZ
ik EEZE Bigid % BEEERE it
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén Tén Tién T Tién Tén
#1123
3 - 4,000 300 215 - 4515
i 2 1,833 - 17 - 1,852
I - 904 200 9 - 1,113
R - 453 300 9 - 762
EIm31() - 1,030 - 30 - 1,060
BUFnTES
5 90 - - - - 90
feiRf 75 - - - - 7
T 75 - - - - 75
242 8,220 800 280 - 9,542
HiaE -

0] Appointed on 2 July 2009

(ii) Appointed on 15 July 2009

)

(i)

REZEENFEA-RERE

RZZENFEA+HREZRE

BE-_ZZhF+-A=+—HLAfEBZ#HE = REPORT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
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28. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)
The remuneration of each Director for the year
ended 31 March 2009 is set out below:

28. EENRSHREEEMNE ()

B (E)
REBEE_TTNF=A=+—RHILFE K&
FEZMERIIT

Basic salaries Contrioution Equity-settied
andhousing  Discretionary to pension share-based
Name of Director Fees allowance bouns scheme payment Total
ERGeR ®itE URhx
B34 e REEE, Rig7EAL 3 EakEE At
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000
Thr Thr Thr THL Thr THL
Executive Directors H1EE
Li Jialin Ff - 5175 500 284 - 5,959
Tay Eng Hoe B3kl - 2,388 5,598 31 1,978 9,99
Ong Wei Hiam, Wiliam IR - 683 100 7 - 790
Chan Hoi Chau Ran = 587 300 12 - 899
Wiliam Choo (il Wiliam Choo (ii - 1,162 - 23 - 1,185
Independent non-executive Directors BV FEH(TEE
Chan Po Fun, Peter B 106 - - - - 106
Ni Zherwei i 78 - - - - 73
Li Wei 0 89 - - - - 89
Hui Hiu Fai () HER (1) 39 - - - - 3
307 9,995 6,498 357 1,978 19,135
Notes: Hia -

(iii) Resigned on 31 December 2008

(iv) Resigned on 15 August 2008

Directors’ emoluments disclosed above include
approximately HK$240,000 (for the year
ended 31 March 2009: HK$307,000) paid to
independent non-executive Directors.

No emoluments have been paid to these
individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office during the period (for the year ended
31 March 2009: Nil).

During the period, no Director of the Company
waived any emoluments (for the year ended
31 March 2009: Nil).

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED = {E{t3iERRER AT

(i) RZTTENFT+A=1+—HFHE
vy RZTTZNFNAT+RBEIT

EXRBECEEME RESN TEILIEHR
TEEH240,0008TT(BE-_FTTNEF=A
=+—HIEFE : 307,000/#7T) °

HAER DAL EANE(BE=F
FNF=ZA=1T—"HLFE &) (FREE
BEMAREB LW EMAREEIR 2 52E)K
TERBER(E -

REA - AR A E SRR WA
(BZE_ZTNF=A=+—HILFE: &) -
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28. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the period included
two (for the year ended 31 March 2009: two)
Directors whose emoluments are reflected in
the analysis presented above. The emoluments
payable to the remaining three (for the year
ended 31 March 2009: three) individuals during
the period are as follows:

EAF e R
BBTEA
RIRGTEIRR

Basic salaries and allowances
Discretionary bonuses
Contributions to pension schemes

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

[

Emolument band

28.

EEREREEEME (&)

b) EEBSHFAL
AEEHAZAZEaS A TERERA (HE
ZEZNFZA=FT—HLEFE: MRB)E
T BEZMEEREXFEINZHOMFR
e REIRS N FEKR=ZZ(BE_TTNF
ZA=ZT—HIEFE  =ZR) AT Z2BEmT ¢

1 April 2009 1 April 2008

to to

31 December 2009 31 March 2009
—EENE “TENF
R—BZ% WA—BZ
—EENE “TETNF
+=-A=+-H ZA=t+-8
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET THL

5,624 3,910

836 7,070

406 463

6,866 11,443

MEeNFTrIEE :

Number of individuals

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000

1,500,001 % 7T % 2,000,000 % 7T
2,000,001 /7T % 2,500,000 # 7T
3,000,001 87T E 3,500,000 7T
3,500,001 87T & 4,000,000 7T
4,000,001 BT E 4,500,000 7T

AE
1 April 2009 1 April 2008
to to
31 December 2009 31 March 2009
—EENE “ZENE
R—HEZE HA—RZ
—EENE “ZTNE
+=ZA=+-H =A=+-H
1 -
1 -
1 -
- 2

BZ-ZZhFE+=-A=1+—HIEN{EAZ#H%E = REPORT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
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29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 29. fIEBEESRERERME
STATEMENT
Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net B AEF RS T FAEA 2 HEFHE YRR
cash generated from operations

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED = {E{t3iERRER AT

1 April 2009 1 April 2008
to to
31 December 2009 31 March 2009
“EENF “ZENE
A—HZ mA—HZE
- -2 —ETNE
+=A=+-H =A=t+-H
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR THL
Profit before taxation B B Al 420,714 318,414
Interest income FEHA (974) (9,233)
Interest expense SR 30,594 93,094
Depreciation of property, plant WE - BELKEERE
and equipment 12,544 16,206
Share of result of an associate MMEBE D RINER (3,353) (6,156)
Equity-settled share-based payment MR % 2 R B3 0R 2,300 1,978
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant HENE  BERREL W),/ BiE
and equipment (84) 96
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEMHEERKEEER
financial assets - 8,004
Net fair value change on other financial BRAFEN A BRROE M
liabilties at fair value through profit or loss BENRATHEZETE - (1,718)
Operating profit before changes in EEES YR L HEA
working capital 461,741 421,685
Changes in working capital LEEGEE)
Trade and other receivables g 5 R E R EIE (867,624) (4,401)
Inventories FE (471,014) 235,152
Trade and other payables B o REMERTIE 1,034,217 181,244
Other financial liebilities at fair value BRATEF A BRRNE MK EE
through profit or loss - (23,667)
Net cash generated from operations REmMBHLTE 157,320 810,013
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COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES
As at 31 December 2009, the Group had future
aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases as follows:

—%FR
—FERF

No later than one year
Later than one year but
not later than five years

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of
properties and items of plant and machinery and
office equipment held under operating leases. The
leases typically run for an initial period of one to three
years, with an option to renew the lease when all
terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The following transactions were carried out with
related parties:

(@) Director’s quarter

The Group entered into a rental agreement with
Joint Honour Development Limited, a company
in which Mr. Li Jialin, the Chairman and an
executive Director of the Company is a major
shareholder, in respect of a director’s quarter.
Pursuant to the agreement, the Group paid a
monthly rental of HK$200,000 to Joint Honour
Development Limited for the period ended
31 December 2009 (for the year ended
31 March 2009: HK$200,000).

30.

31.

KL RYE
RZBEENF+_A=+—H8 AEEREDTHE
2 EHAMAE 2 B RERSAEEIDT

31 December 31 March
2009 2009
—BBRE  ZFENF
+=—A=+—-H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
31,389 41,853

27,793 32,617

59,182 74,470

AEBRZEMERLEHNET ZME MM &
WRERBEEA - BOZNFFHR—HKR—ZE=
FooTEREHYBSHERMAGRK - SIEHOE
BRAET -

BFHREALRS
NTREEREATETZIRS

(a EEBTS
REBEAAAREFRRATESTTEMEE
BEBRRE Z A7 Joint Honour Development
Limited st —HIZESB &5 —BHERZ -
BiEZHZE  AEEREBEE_SZTNF=A
=+—HI-HR » mJoint Honour Development
Limited 3z ff A 200,000/t (ZETNE= A
=+—HI%FE : 200,000 L) °

BE-—ZSThE+=-A=+—HUh{EB2Z#H%E =« REPORT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Key management compensation (including
the amounts disclosed in note 28)

(b)

EAFE R

EIRTEAL
EIRSHBIE

AR D St #eat

Basic salaries and allowances
Discretionary bonuses

Contribution to pension scheme
Equity-settled share-based payments

32. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE PERIOD
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued the following amendments,
new standards and interpretations which are not yet
effective for the period ended 31 December 2009
and which have not been adopted in these financial

statements.

31. HBEALRS(H)
(b) EEEEASME (BIEAMFE28HE2KE)

1 April 2009 1 April 2008

to to

31 December 2009 31 March 2009

—EENE “ZENE

MA—HZ WA—BZ

—EENE “ZTNE

+ZA=+-H ZA=1t—"H

HK$°000 HK$'000

TER T

20,527 20,752

1,798 15,315

1,171 1,057

EQIz] - 1,978
23,496 39,102

32. BE-EFAFT-A=1+—HIHEZEME

f& ﬂiix&Zﬂ/ Al MERRREAURTRZEE

BEAPBHRR2TIERAS  BESHMAEE
HTIREBE—_FTTAF+_A=1+— ElJt,HHF'ﬁlﬁ
REMBYRRATBERERRAZIER] - #ER R
EE

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after
AT B BASk A& R 2 & st B A R

HKFRS 3 (Revised), BB EwEERE 358 (1B3]) - 1 July 2009
Business combination ey e —EENFEA—H

Amendments to HKAS 27, EBEHHERIFE 27 98 (1BETA) - 1 July 2009
Consolidated and separate RE MBS IRk —ETNFEA—H
financial statements

Amendments to HKAS 39, Financial ~ &8 &85 3957 ({851 A) 1 July 2009
instruments: Recognition and THTH  BRRGE— —EZhFEHA—H

measurement — Eligible hedged SEREHIER

items

Improvement to HKFRSs 2009
YR 2 B

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
BB THE
VST HOLDINGS LIMITED = {E{t3iERRER AT

—TRNFHEBUHRE

FREWHRELERNFE 95 -

1 July 2009 or 1 January 2010
—EEhFEHA—H
H—_ET—FTF—-—H—H

1 January 2013
—=%—H—H
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE PERIOD
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
amendments is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption
of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Company’s and Group’s results of operations and
financial positions.

32.

BE-ZEENF+-A=1+T—RHILLYBEEME
EARERZIEET  HERRREARTRZEZE
(&)

AEBETENGHEFETNERERAR AR
B 2SR RMUFBI TAAEHARR R
AEE 2 REXBRIBRIERERTE -

BE-_ZZhF+-A=+—HLAfEBZ#HE = REPORT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
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Financial Summary B #%# =
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of AREBBRERFEMREE 2 EEAREELRBEHESEY
the Group for the last five financial years is set out below: AT
RESULTS E4
Nine months
ended
31 December Year ended 31 March
2009 2009 2008 2007 2006
BE-EZNE
+=B=+-H BE=A=1+-HLEE
NER “ETNF —TEN\F “TTAF i S
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx THT THT THT THT
(Note)
(Hz)
Turnover e 19,705,697 22,091,272 12,350,522 4,236,829 3,705,633
Profit before taxation by 420,714 318,414 329,263 195,694 135,859
Taxation WA (100,887) (56,605) (69,710) (34,261) (24,091)
Profit for the period/year 1/ E R A 319,827 261,809 259,553 161,333 111,768
Attributable to: FE1E
Equity holders of ViG]l 2
the Company HEA 276,333 231,624 244,743 161,333 111,768
Minority interests SHRF R 43,494 30,185 14,810 - -
319,827 261,809 259,553 161,333 111,768
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEEE
As at
31 December As at 31 March
2009 2009 2008 2007 2006
RZBELE R=R=+-H
+=ZB=+-H “TTNF —TEN\F TR e
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx THL THT THL THL
(Note)
(H1:2)
Total assets BEE 6,391,828 4,755,011 5,095,669 773,901 556,020
Total liabilities BaRE (4,494,639) (3,403,719) (3,906,095) (354,808) (297,909)
Total equity faEs 1,897,189 1,351,292 1,189,574 419,093 258,111
Note: et -

The effect of adoption of HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Disclosure
and Presentation” and HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” was adjusted to the opening balance of reserves for the
year ended 31 March 2006 in accordance with the transitional provisions

of HKAS 32 and HKAS 39.

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED = {E{t3iERRER AT

RWBESHEANERK [MTE : BRERER]I ULEESE
ERIE [EMTHE : AR E | ¥ ENRRELGER
F R RABE G ERF R L BREGECHBE—TETRF=A
=t RUEFEZREZENEHRIEHRE -
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